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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS IN 25 YEARS OF POCL

Export & Domestic Turnover ( Lakhs)R

Fixed Assets Turnover (Times) Profit After Tax ( Lakhs)L

EBITDA to Total Turnover ( Lakhs)L

1996

Average times of 5 years Average Profit After Tax of 5 years

Average Turnover of 5 Years

Average EBITDA of 5 Years

Domestic Turnover for 25 Years

Export Turnover for 25 Years

717

10.89

13.77

10.22

15.04

90 140
276

415

2,346
25.71

1996-2000

1996-2000

2001-2005

2001-2005

2006-2010

2006-2010

2011-2015

2011-2015

2016-2020

2016-2020

1,919

53,919

68,068

2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

4,385

12,511

88,963
5,041

290

833

1,546

1996-2000 2001-2005 2006-2010 2011-2015 2016-2020

34,481

152
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS IN 25 YEARS OF POCL

Growth in Net Worth ( Lakhs)l

Dividend (%) Book Value & Earning per share ( Lakhs)L

Return on Capital Employed (%)

1996-2000 1996-20002001-2005 2001-20052006-2010 2006-20102011-2015 2011-20152016-2020 2016-2020

12.40
10.00

11.20
12.80

11.26
1.79

12.10
2.00

18.24
2.55

37.13

5.08

172.01

42.07

30.00

1996-2000 2001-2005 2006-2010 2011-2015 2016-2020

19.53 20.26

16.18

13.77

22.40

9,714

3,444

1,975

796564

1996-2000 2001-2005 2006-2010 2011-2015 2016-2020

Average Net worth of 5 years Average ROCE of 5 years

Average Dividend of 5 years Average Book Value per share of 5 years

Average Earning per share of 5 years
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ANIL KUMAR BANSAL

ASHISH BANSAL

R.P. BANSAL

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, B.Sc., aged 66 years, is the Executive Chairman and Whole Time

Promoter Director. He took over as Chairman from June 2015 and prior to that he was the

Managing Director from the date of inception of the Company. Prior to this, he was a

Director in Private Limited Company and Managing Partner in various Partnership Firms.

During his tenure as Managing Director he expanded the product base of the company

from Metallic Oxides to Plastic Additives and he is the man behind starting of Lead Metals

and Alloys manufacturing facility in Tamilnadu.

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal served as a committee member in All India Plastic Manufacturers

Association and Indian Plastics Institute. Notably he has presented various papers on the

behavior of PVC stabilizers and plastics under various National and International forums.

Under his leadership, has become one of the largest manufacturers of Lead Metal

and Lead Alloys and has been awarded under various categories for exceptional

performance.

Mr. Ashish Bansal, MBA aged 39 years, joined in the year 2009 and became the

Managing Director of the Company in the year 2015. He graduated in Management

studies from the University of Wales, United Kingdom. Prior to joining the Board, he was a

Whole Time Director in Lohia Metals Pvt Limited and was responsible for overall operation

of the Company. By virtue of his holding, he is a Promoter Director in

An extreme innovator and believer in game-changing businesses of the future, Mr. Ashish

Bansal is known for challenging conventional wisdom and spotting opportunities quickly.

Mr. Ashish Bansal led into new frontiers and was the backbone behind setting up of

the new plant in Andhra Pradesh and explored the International market for company’s

product. Under his guidance, Company has been awarded largest exporter award from the

Engineering Export Promotion Council (EEPC) for continuous period of

Further he was responsible for achieving the highest turnover, profitability, EPS and

Networth in the history of . He established brand image in the global market.

Mr.R.P.Bansal, aged about 73 years, Whole Time Promoter Director, started his career in

1965 in chemicals trading. By this virtue he gained a widespread knowledge in chemicals.

He is well versed in the technical aspects of the Manufacturing process and he has rich

experience in the marketing as well.

He is currently looking after the marketing of the Company in the Northern and the Eastern

Region of the Country. He is also working on expansion of the Company in new areas and

is focusing on the unexplored markets.

POCL

POCL

POCL.

POCL

POCL POCL’s

seven years and

received Excellence in Business Performance award from Economic Times in 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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A. VIJAY ANAND

DR.SHOBARAMAKRISHNAN

DR. M RAMASUBRAMANI

Mr. A. Vijay Anand aged about 63 years is a retired civil servant with over 36 years of

experience in the Central Government, in positions ranging from revenue collection,

adjudication, administration and appeals in Indirect Taxes. He has served as Executive

Director, Hindustan Aeronautics Ltd, a Navaratna PSU, Government Nominee Director on

the Board of Antrix Corporation, Member Secretary Space Commission, IT Secretary,

Additional Secretary and Financial advisor in the Government of India, Principal Chief

Commissioner of Indirect Taxes and Customs etc. He is holding the position of Non-

Executive Independent Director in from 2018.

Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan, Msc., M.phil and Ph.D., aged about 66 years, obtained

Doctorate from University of Madras in the year 1995 and held the position of Associate

Professor and Head of the Department in Women’s Christian College, Chennai. She has

presented research papers and published books in Chemistry for the benefit of students

and for research and development in the Chemical Sector. She is holding the position of

Non- Executive Independent Director in from 2015.

He is holding the position of Non- Executive

Independent Director in from March 2020

POCL

POCL

POCL

Dr. M. Ramasubramani IPS aged about 62 years is a well-known Police Officer and also a

high level Sports Administrator. He holds the post of the President of Handball Federation

of India (HFI); President of South Asian Handball Federation and Vice President of Tamil

Nadu Olympic Association (TNOA). A dynamic and multi fascinated personality

Dr. M Ramasubramani IPS, formerly Inspector General of Police, has worked in various

places from Chennai to Kanyakumari in various capacities as SP, DC, DIG of many ranges

and also as IGP, Central Zone consisting of 8 districts. Avery robust and highly passionate

person in the field of Education & Technology also; and he is keen to spread the Virtual

Reality(VR) and Augmented Reality Technology (AR) concepts across India by

spearheading a Private Limited company ‘VReon Tech India’ located in Chennai. VReon is

technically competent to provide VR, AR based Software Solutions on par with global

standards to meet clients’ requirements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD'S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 25 Annual Report on the Operations of your Company along with the

Audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 together with Auditors’Report thereon.

The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2020 and the comparative figures for the previous

year are summarized below:

( in Lakhs)

Revenue from Operations 1,21,987.10 1,04,888.55

Other income 354.28 398.93

Depreciation and Interest 1781.23 1,641.60

Tax 488.22 1,814.98

Other comprehensive income 9.59 4.13

Your Company delivered outstanding performance during the year in the challenging economic environment. The

highlights of the Company’s performance for the year ended March 31, 2020 are as under-

The total net sales of the Company increased by 16% to 1,21,987 lakhs (PY Net Sales: 1,04,888 lakhs)

Exports increased by 24% to 68068 lakhs for the year 2019-20 from 54930 lakhs in the previous year.

Towards the end of the financial year 2019-20, the Company, in compliance with the directions issued by the Government

of India, stopped its operations at its manufacturing locations and at the registered office with effect from 24 March, 2020

to ensure the safety of our employees and their families and to contain the spread of COVID -19.

Subsequently the company was granted permission to partially run its plant located at Andhra Pradesh and resumed

partial operations from 20th April, 2020.The company has also resumed its maintenance operations in its Tamil Nadu unit

from 20 April 2020 and resumed the manufacturing operation from 06 May 2020 in accordance with the general

permissions from concerned government authorities. The Company had also adopted the work from home policy during

the initial lockdown period and on receipt of e-pass, resumed its operations partially in its registered office on 06 May

2020 and again discontinued its operations from 18 June 2020 and again resumed its operations from 6 July 2020.

th

th

th th

th

th th

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

TOTAL REVENUE 1,22,341.38 1,05,287.48

Profit Before Depreciation, Interest and Tax (PBDIT) 3904.01 6,829.41

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (PBT) 2122.78 5,187.81

Profit for the year 1634.56 3,372.83

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 1644.15 3,376.96

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

j

j

For the year ended

l

l

j

j j

MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company between the end
of the financial year and the date of this report, except for the impact arising out of COVID-19, which is detailed in the
Business performance.

POCL
®
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PRESENT SITUATION AND THE ROAD FORWARD

DIVIDEND

UNPAID/ UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND

MERGER

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

ANNUAL RETURN

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Due to COVID 19 our supply to indigenous customers reduced for the first quarter and it has restored its position from the

second quarter onwards. Though there has been a slight disruption in the manufacturing facilities during the initial

period of lockdown, the same partially normalized in the second quarter and we expect total normalcy from third quarter of

2020-21.

The Company has already paid an Interim Dividend of 3.00 (i.e. 30%) per equity share of 10/- each for the financial year

ended March 31, 2020. The Interim dividend was approved by the Board in its meeting dated 13 March 2020 and was paid

to the members whose name appeared in the Register of Members as on March 21, 2020. In order to conserve resources

during a period of uncertainty your Directors have not recommended any Final Dividend for the year 2019-20.

The total cash flow on account of dividend, including the Dividend Distribution Tax was 201 lakhs. Further, the Company

has transferred 160.00 lakhs to the General Reserve.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 125 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Investor Education and Protection

Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company has transferred unpaid and unclaimed

dividends amounting to 1.85 Lakhs to the Investor Education and Protection Fund during the year.

During the year, the Company has obtained the approval from the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench for the

merger of Meloy Metals Private Limited with Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited with effect from 1 April 2019. The order

has been pronounced by the NCLT, Chennai Bench on 21 February 2020.

Based on the NCLT approval the Company has allotted 2,36,397 fully paid up Equity shares of 10/- each to the

shareholders of MeloyMetals PrivateLimitedand thesamehas beencredited to the Sharecapital accountof the Company.

The effective date of the scheme of amalgamation is 02nd March 2020, being the date on which the certified true copy of

the NCLT order was filed with the Registrar of Companies.

An extract of Annual Return pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 in the prescribed

Form MGT 9 is provided as Annexure - I to this report.

In terms of section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 as amended by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 effective

31 July 2018, a copy of the annual return in Form MG

In terms of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Ashish Bansal,

Managing Director, who has been longest in the office is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting

and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

During the year under review, Mr. G P Venkateswaran, Non Executive Independent Director has resigned from the Board

with effect from 25 January 2020 and Dr. M Ramasubramani has been appointed as Additional Director in the category of

Independent Director of the Company, with effect from March 13, 2020 who shall hold office till the conclusion of the Annual

General Meeting of the Company. To participate in the development of policy and major decision-making process at board

meetings, the Board recommends his appointment as Independent Director of the Company.

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev resigned from the Board of the company with effect from 29 June 2020. The Board places on

record the valuable contribution made by the above Directors during their tenure as Directors of the company.

The Company has received declaration from all the Independent Directors confirming that they meet the criteria of

Independence as prescribed under the Act and Listing Regulations.

Brief profile of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment along with the disclosures required pursuant to

provisions of Listing Regulations and the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting,

forming part of the Annual Report.

j
th

st

st

st

th

th

j

j

j

j

j.

T-7 is to be placed on the website of the Company. The same is

available in the website of the Company www.pocl.co.in.
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During the year, seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The particulars of the meetings held and

attendance by each Director are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report, which forms a part of this report. The

Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of

India in compliance of Section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with revised Secretarial Standard 1 (Para no.9)

of the revised Secretarial Standards on Board Meetings.

In compliance with Regulation 16(10)(b) and 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), the Board has adopted a policy on familiarisation programme for

Independent Directors of the Company. The policy familiarizes the Independent Directors with the nature of industry in

which the Company operates, business model of the Company, their roles, rights and responsibilities in the Company.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS AND FAMILIRISATION PROGRAMME

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD EVALUATION

REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

In terms of the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all the Independent Directors of the Company

have furnished a declaration to the Company stating that they fulfill the criteria of Independence as prescribed under

Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 and are not disqualified to act as an Independent Director.

Mr.Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman and Whole Time Director, Mr.Ashish Bansal Managing Director, Mr.R.P.Bansal Whole

Time Director, Mr.K.Kumaravel GM Finance and Company Secretary and Mrs.Usha Sankar Chief Financial Officer are the

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company in terms of provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013 and

there has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the financial year 2019 – 20.

In compliance to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted

various committees of the Board. Details of scope, constitution, terms of reference, number of meetings held during the

year under review alon

As required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, an annual performance evaluation of the Board is

undertaken where the Board formally assesses its own performance with an aim to improve the effectiveness of the Board

and the Committees. The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of the Board, Committees and

Directors which include criteria for performance evaluation of Non-executive and Executive Directors.

The Company carried out the evaluation process internally which included the evaluation of the Board as a whole, Board

Committees and Peer evaluation of the Directors. The evaluation process focused on various aspects of the functioning of

the Board and Committees such as composition of the Board and Committees, experience and competencies,

performance of specific duties and obligations, governance issues, etc. The report on performance evaluation of the

Individual Directors was reviewed by the Chairman of the Board and feedback was given to Directors.

Details of performance evaluation of Independent Directors as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 is

provided in Report on Corporate Governance.

The Directors have expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process and its results.

In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 of SEBI Listing Regulations,

a policy relating to remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees has been adopted by

the Board of Directors thereby analyzing the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of

a Director. The said policy is available on the website of the Company at

There has been no change in the policy since the last financial year.

The details of familiarization programme during the financial year 2019-20 are available on the website of the Company at

http://pocl.co.in/policies/Details-of-Familiarisation-programme.pdf

g with attendance of Committee Members therein forms part of the Report on Corporate

Governance, which is annexed to this report. Details of the constitution of these Committees is also available on the

website of the Company www.pocl.co.in

http://pocl.co.in/policies/Nomination-and-

Remuneration-Policy.pdf .

POCL
®
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

(A) Conservation of Energy

(B) Technology absorption

(C) Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo ( in Lakhs)

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

(I) Steps taken on conservation of energy:

(ii) Steps taken for utilizing alternate source of energy

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments

Energy Conservation measures taken:

All efforts for saving energy are being pursued by your company and the major measures taken during the year are:

The Company has installed furnace oil burner in refining kettles used in all the units and replaced the usage of

diesel with furnace oil which has resulted in a energy saving of 20% during the year.

The Company has installed new LED lamps in all new sheds and has installed adequate transparent sheets to

the roof top. This will reduce the day light requirement considerably.

To increase the power factor the Company has increased the reactor coil type capacitor bank and Power

capacitor bank during the year and has reduced the power consumption.

The Company proposes to introduce Variable Frequency drive (VFD) for new compressor to reduce the

electricity consumption.

The company is exploring the possibility of usage of Gas instead of Diesel as a fuel to substantially save the energy cost.

The company has made sizeable investment in capital equipments mainly energy conservation equipment in all its

facilities wherever required.

The Company has not absorbed any new technology during the year under review. However, the Company continued to

improve the quality of products through its normal research and development system and improved the quality of the

product and reduced the cost of production.

Foreign Exchange Earnings 68068.32

89601.43

All contracts / arrangements / transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in

its ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit

Committee for review and approval. The Audit Committee has provided omnibus approval for transactions which are of

repetitive nature and/or entered in the Ordinary Course of business and are at Arm’s Length and periodically review the

transactions on quarterly basis.

â

â

â

â

j

Foreign Exchange Outgo

Details pertaining to remuneration as required under Section197(12) of the Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 as amended has been provided as an

Annexure to this report.II

( in Lakhs)

2019-20 2018-19

j

54930.56

81382.56

During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties or any

person belonging to the Promoter/Promoter group which holds 10% or more shareholding in the listed entity or any other

contract / arrangement / transaction which could be considered material in accordance with the policy of the Company on

10
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materiality of related party transactions and Listing Regulations.Accordingly, the disclosure required under Section

134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013, in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company.

The Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by

the Board may be accessed on the Company’s website at: http://pocl.co.in/policies/Related-Party-Transaction.pdf

The Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee with Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev as the Chairman

of the Committee and Mr. Ashish Bansal and Ms. Shoba Ramakrishnan as Members of the Committee. The CSR policy of

the Company is available on the Company’s website http://pocl.co.in/policies/CSR_Policy.pdf

The Vigil Mechanism is supervised by the Audit Committee and the whistle blower has direct access to the Chairman of the

Audit Committee. The vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy is available on the Company’s website at

http://pocl.co.in/policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE AND INVESTMENTS

DEPOSITS

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO LISTING AGREEMENT

VIGIL MECHANISM

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has not given any loans or provided guarantees or securities to any other body corporates as envisaged

under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year 2019-20. The details of the investments made by the

Company are given under the note no. 8 forming part of the financial statements.

During the year, your Company did not accept any deposits under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company

has however received loans from Directors and in accordance with the provisions of Rule 2(c)(viii) of the Companies

(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, the details of the Loan received is given under Note 47 of the Notes forming part of

the financial statements.

The Company does not have subsidiary or associate Company. The Company is also not a subsidiary of any other

Company. As at March 31, 2020, the Company has not entered into any joint ventures.

As part of its initiatives under “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR), the company has contributed funds for the following

schemes-

1. Provision of health care service by sponsoring the treatment of Poor and Underprivileged.

2. Rural Development - providing infrastructure in and around the villages surrounding the Plant.

3. Contribution for Charitable activities, Food distribution, Construction of pathway to old age home and Safety

cameras in Chennai city

4. Sponsoring education to the poor and destitute students

Detailed Report on CSR activities in the prescribed format are attached in Annexure III.

Your Company’s shares are listed with the BSE Limited. The Company has paid the Annual Listing fees and there are no

arrears.

POCL has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy establishing vigil mechanism, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors

and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s

Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who

avail of the mechanism.

The Board has adopted and implemented a suitable Risk Management Policy for the company which identifies therein

different elements of risk which may threaten the existence of the company.

POCL
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SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

AUDITORS AND AUDITORS’REPORT

Statutory Auditors

Cost Auditor

Secretarial Audit

REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY THE AUDITORS

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

The Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries

of India (ICSI) and approved by the Central Government under Section 118 (10) of the Act.

The Company has Internal Control Systems commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. The

Board has devised systems, policies, procedures and frameworks for the internal control which includes adherence to

company’s policy, safeguarding assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial information. In line with best practices, the Audit Committee

and the Board reviews these internal control systems to ensure they remain effective and are achieving their intended

purpose.

The Auditors of the Company have verified the internal financial control systems prevailing in the organization and

confirmed the effectiveness of the same in their report during the year 2019-20.

M/s. L. Mukundan and Associates, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a

term of 5 (five) consecutive years, at the 22 Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2017. They have confirmed

that they are not disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial statement of the Company is part of this Report. There has been no

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by the Auditors in their Report.

M/s. K. R. Vivekanandan Unni & Associates, Cost Accountants (having Firm Registration Number: 102179) has been

appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the year 2019-20 for conducting audit of the cost accounts maintained

by the Company relating to inorganic chemicals and base metals.

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee has approved the remuneration of 30,000/-

(Rupees Thirty Thousand Only) in addition to applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses. As per the provisions of

Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors is required to be ratified by the

shareholders of the Company. Aresolution seeking members’ ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor

forms part of the notice convening this Annual General Meeting.

In respect of the cost audit for the year 2018-19, the Cost Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or

adverse remark.

The Board had appointed KSM Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the FY 2019-

20. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 is annexed herewith marked as Annexure IV

to this Report.

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors or Secretarial Auditors have not reported any fraud to

the Audit Committee under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year under review the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Bench sanctioned the Scheme for the merger

of Meloy Metals Private Limited with our Company.

Other than the above order, there are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts which would

impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.

nd

s.

The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer

except for the remark on delay in intimation to BSE about the amended Code of Conduct and Fair Disclosure policy under

SEBI(PIT) Regulations.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORK PLACE

DIRECTORS’RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anil Kumar Bansal Ashish Bansal

Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(3) of the

Listing Regulations, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report.

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the Corporate

Governance requirements set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the Listing

Regulations forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming

compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance is attached to the report on Corporate Governance.

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirement of the Sexual Harassment of

Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 (‘POSH Act’). Internal Complaints Committee

(ICC) has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees of the Company are

covered under this policy.

During the year, there were no complaints received pursuant to the provisions of the POSH Act.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, with respect to Directors’ responsibility statement it is

hereby confirmed that:

1. in the preparation of the annual accounts applicable accounting standards has been followed and there is no

material departure from the same;

2. the Directors selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and

estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company

at the end of the financial year i.e., March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the Company for that period;

3. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in

accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the Company’s assets and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

5. the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal

financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

6. the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and

that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

During the year, your company has received the following award;

Gold Trophy for being the top exporter (Medium Enterprise) in the year 2018-19 from Engineering Export

Promotion Council (EEPC), Southern Region, Ministry of Commerce and Industry, Government of India.

Your Directors take this opportunity to place on record their sincere appreciation for the continued trust and confidence

reposed in the Company by the bankers, business associates, regulatory authorities, customers, dealers, vendors and

shareholders. Your Directors recognize and appreciate the services rendered by the officers, staff and employees of the

Company at all levels for their dedicated efforts to improve the performance of the Company.

Date : 13th August 2020 Executive Chairman Managing Director
Place : Chennai DIN: 00232223 DIN: 01543967

l

l The company has obtained London Metal Exchange (LME) Brand Listing certificate from the London Metal

Exchange (LME) for its Lead Metal produced in its factory at Sriperumbudur. Tamilnadu, under the brand name

POCLPB970R

POCL
®
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ANNEXURE I
FORM NO. MGT- 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sl. No Name and Description of main
Products/Services Product /Service Company

As on financial year ended on March 31, 2020

i CIN L24294TN1995PLC030586

ii Registration Date 21/03/1995

iii Name of the Company Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

iv Category/Sub-Category of the Company Public Company Limited by Shares;
Indian Non-Government Company

v Address of the Registered Office&
Contact Details # 2, Harrington Road,

Chetpet, Chennai-600031
Telephone No. : +91-044-42965454

Fax No. : +91-044-42965455

Email : info@pocl.co.in

Website : www.pocl.co.in

vi Whether Listed Company Yes - BSE Limited

vii Name, Address & Contact Details of the

Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. Subramanian Building, No.1, Club House Road

Chennai – 600 002 Tel: 044-2846 0718; Fax: 044 2846 0129

Website: www.cameoindia.com

All the business activities contributing 10 percent or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated

1 Lead Metal & Alloy 24203- Manufacture of Lead, Zinc

& Tin Products & Alloys

Pursuant to  Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules,  2014

KRM Centre, 4th Floor,

Cameo Corporate Services Limited

96.02%

NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. Name and Address of the CIN / GLN Holding / Subsidiary / % of Shares Applicable

No. Company Associate Held Section

1 Nil

Email: cameo@cameo.india.com
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL EQUITY)

Demat Physical Total
% of Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

(i) Category-wise shareholding

Category of Shareholders

% Change

during the

year

A. PROMOTERS

SUB- TOTAL (A)(1) 25,86,312 0 25,86,312 46.38 28,30,132 0 28,30,132 48.69 2.31

(2) Foreign

SUB TOTAL (A)(2) - - - - - - - 0.00 0.00

Total Shareholding of Promoter (A) =

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 25,86,312 - 25,86,312 46.38 28,33,165 0 28,30,132 48.69 2.31

B.PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

SUB TOTAL (B)(1) 19307 0 19307 0.35 108 0 108 0.00 -0.34

(2)Non Institutions

a) Bodies Corporates

(1) Indian

a) Individual/HUF 25,86,312 0 25,86,312 46.38 28,30,132 0 28,30,132 48.69 2.31

b) Central Govt 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

c) State Govt(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

d) Bodies Corporates - 0 - 0.00 - 0 - 0.00 0.00

e) Bank/FI 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

f) Any Other

a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Other Individuals

c) Bodies Corporate

d) Banks/FI

e) Any Other- Director       Relative NRI - - - - - - - 0.00 0.00

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Venture Capital Funds

c) Alternate Investment Funds 3307 0 3307 0.06 0 0 0 0.00 -0.06

d) Foreign Venture Capital Investors

e) Foreign Portfolio Investors 16000 0 16000 0.29 0 0 0 0.00 -0.29

f) Financial  Institutions/ Banks 0 0 0 0.00 108 0 108 0.00 0.00

g) Insurance  Companies

h) Provident Funds/ Pension Funds

i) Any Other (specify)

I) Indian 1,45,530 0 1,45,530 2.61 1,30,380 0 1,30,380 2.24 -0.37

ii) Overseas

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

POCL
®
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IV. SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE TO TOTAL EQUITY)

Demat Physical Total
% of Total

Shares
Demat Physical Total

% of Total
Shares

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year

(i) Category-wise shareholding

Category of Shareholders

% Change

during the

year

nominal

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00

b) Individuals

c) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(2) 29,09,340 61,034 29,70,374 53.27 29,31,542 50,608 29,82,150 51.31 -1.97

0.00

I)  Individual shareholder holding

share  capital

upto 2 Lakh 20,95,417 59,099 21,54,516 38.64 20,43,053 48,673 20,91,726 35.99 -2.65

ii) Individual shareholder holding

nominal share capital in excess of

2 Lakh 2,91,629 0 2,91,629 5.23 3,91,950 0 3,91,950 6.74 1.51

0.00

i) Clearing Members 4,247 0 4,247 0.08 7,127 0 7,127 0.12 0.04

ii) Directors & their Relatives - 1935 1,935 0.03 - 1935 1,935 0.03 0.00

iii) Hindu Undivided Families 1,10,070 0 1,10,070 1.97 1,14,336 0 1,14,336 1.97 0.00

iv) Non-Resident Indian 2,54,128 0 2,54,128 4.56 2,31,992 0 2,31,992 3.99 -0.57

v) IEPF 8,319 0 8,319 0.15 12,704 0 12,704 0.22 0.07

Total Public Shareholding

R

R

(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 29,28,647 61,034 29,89,681 53.62 29,31,650 50,608 29,82,258 51.31 -2.31

Grand Total (A+B+C) 55,14,959 61,034 55,75,993 100.00 57,64,815 50,608 58,12,390 100.00 0.00

C. Shares held by Custodian for

GDRs & ADRs

(ii)  Shareholding of Promoters

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year

Shareholding at the
end of the year

Sl
No.

Shareholder's
Name

No of
Shares

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of shares
pledged/

encumbered
to total
shares

% of shares
pledged/

encumbered
to total
shares

1 ASHISH BANSAL 636,620 11.42 0 847,582 14.58 0 3.16

2 ANIL KUMAR BANSAL 623,461 11.18 0 623,461 10.73 0 -0.45

3 R.P.BANSAL 502,737 9.02 0 530,945 9.13 0 0.11

4 MANJU BANSAL 512,627 9.19 0 512,627 8.82 0 -0.37

5 SAROJ BANSAL 183,175 3.29 0 183,175 3.15 0 -0.14

6 PAWANKUMAR BANSAL 123,290 2.21 0 123,290 2.12 0 -0.09

7 MEGHA CHOUDHARI 1,640 0.03 0 5,568 0.10 0 0.07

8 CHARU BANSAL 2,762 0.05 0 3,484 0.06 0 0.01

TOTAL 2,586,312 46.38 0 2,830,132 48.69 0 2.30

%
change
in share
holding
during

the year
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Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl .
No.

Shareholder's  Name

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

1 Ashish Bansal

2 Anil Kumar Bansal

3 R.P. Bansal

4 Manju Bansal

5 Saroj Bansal

6 Pawan Kumar Bansal

7 Megha Choudhari

8 Charu Bansal

At the beginning of the year 636,620 11.42 636,620 11.42

Date wise Increase/Decrease in promoters
shareholding during the year

Purchase 07-Jun-2019 2,187 0.04 638,807 10.99

Purchase 13-Dec-2019 10,163 0.17 648,970 11.17

Purchase 20-Dec-2019 3,211 0.06 652,181 11.22

Purchase 27-Dec-2019 1,941 0.03 654,122 11.25

Purchase 31-Dec-2019 147 0.00 654,269 11.26

Purchase 31-Mar-2020 8,634 0.15 662,903 11.40

Merger Allotment 184,679 3.18 847,582 14.58

At the end of the Year 847,582 14.58 847,582 14.58

At the beginning of the year 623,461 11.18 623,461 11.18

At the end of the year 623,461 10.73 623,461 10.73

At the beginning of the year 502,737 9.02 502,737 9.02

Purchase 14-Jun-2019 155 0.00 502,737 8.65

Merger Allotment 28,053 0.48 530,790 9.13

At the end of the year 530,945 9.13 530,945 9.13

At the beginning of the year 512,627 9.19 512,627 9.19

At the end of the year 512,627 8.82 512,627 8.82

At the beginning of the year 183,175 3.29 183,175 3.29

At the end of the year 183,175 3.15 183,175 3.15

At the beginning of the year 123,290 2.211 23,290 2.21

At the end of the year 123,290 2.12 123,290 2.12

At the beginning of the year 1,640 0.03 1,640 0.03

Merger Allotment 3,928 0.07 5,568 0.10

At the end of the year 5,568 0.10 5,568 0.10

At the beginning of the year 2,762 0.05 2,762 0.05

Merger Allotment 722 0.01 3,484 0.06

At the end of the year 3,484 0.06 3,484 0.06

(iii) Change in promoters' Shareholding

POCL
®
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Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl .
No.

Name of the Shareholder

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

1 SANGEETHA S

2 PADAM C BANSAL

3 RAMESH SHANTILAL TOLAT

4 RANGAPPA N

At the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

08-Nov-2019 144,171 2.48 144,171 2.48

At the end of the Year 144,171 2.48 144,171 2.48

At the beginning of the year 115,516 2.07 115,516 2.07

Sale 05-Apr-2019 (3,930) -0.07 111,586 1.92

Sale 19-Apr-2019 (4,719) -0.08 106,867 1.84

Sale 31-May-2019 (4,069) -0.07 102,798 1.77

At the end of the Year 102,798 1.77 102,798 1.77

JT1 : AMBER RAMESH TOLAT

At the beginning of the year 77,115 1.38 77,115 1.38

At the end of the Year 77,115 1.33 77,115 1.33

At the beginning of the year 42,600 0.76 42,600 0.76

Purchase 12-Apr-2019 100 0.00 42,700 0.73

Purchase 19-Apr-2019 100 0.00 42,800 0.74

Purchase 10-May-2019 200 0.00 43,000 0.74

Purchase 17-May-2019 200 0.00 43,200 0.74

Purchase 31-May-2019 1,200 0.02 44,400 0.76

Purchase 14-Jun-2019 100 0.00 44,500 0.77

Purchase 21-Jun-2019 200 0.00 44,700 0.77

Purchase 28-Jun-2019 100 0.00 44,800 0.77

Purchase 05-Jul-2019 200 0.00 45,000 0.77

Purchase 12-Jul-2019 100 0.00 45,100 0.78

Purchase 19-Jul-2019 200 0.00 45,300 0.78

Purchase 02-Aug-2019 1,400 0.02 46,700 0.80

Purchase 09-Aug-2019 600 0.01 47,300 0.81

Purchase 16-Aug-2019 400 0.01 47,700 0.82

Purchase 23-Aug-2019 100 0.00 47,800 0.82

Purchase 06-Sep-2019 200 0.00 48,000 0.83

Purchase 08-Nov-2019 200 0.00 48,200 0.83

Purchase 22-Nov-2019 200 0.00 48,400 0.83

Purchase 13-Dec-2019 100 0.00 48,500 0.83

Purchase 31-Jan-2020 500 0.01 49,000 0.84

Purchase 07-Feb-2020 600 0.01 49,600 0.85

Purchase
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(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Purchase 28-Feb-2020 700 0.01 50,300 0.87

Purchase 13-Mar-2020 200 0.00 50,500 0.87

Purchase 20-Mar-2020 1,300 0.02 51,800 0.89

At the end of the Year 51,800 0.89 51,800 0.89

At the beginning of the year 27,743 0.50 27,743 0.50

At the end of the Year 27,743 0.48 27,743 0.48

At the beginning of the year 8,549 0.15 8,549 0.15

Purchase 26-Apr-2019 1,500 0.03 10,049 0.17

Sale 10-May-2019 (586) -0.01 9,463 0.16

Sale 17-May-2019 (500) -0.01 8,963 0.15

Purchase 21-Jun-2019 531 0.01 9,494 0.16

Purchase 28-Jun-2019 599 0.01 10,093 0.17

Purchase 12-Jul-2019 2,265 0.04 12,358 0.21

Purchase 02-Aug-2019 1,222 0.02 13,580 0.23

Sale 09-Aug-2019 (394) -0.01 13,186 0.23

Purchase 23-Aug-2019 500 0.01 13,686 0.24

Purchase 30-Aug-2019 1,000 0.02 14,686 0.25

Sale 11-Sep-2019 (500) -0.01 14,186 0.24

Purchase 13-Sep-2019 1,368 0.02 15,554 0.27

Purchase 27-Sep-2019 500 0.01 16,054 0.28

Purchase 04-Oct-2019 500 0.01 16,554 0.28

Purchase 18-Oct-2019 1,000 0.02 17,554 0.30

Purchase 25-Oct-2019 102 0.00 17,656 0.30

Purchase 01-Nov-2019 758 0.01 18,414 0.32

Purchase 20-Dec-2019 692 0.01 19,106 0.33

Purchase 27-Dec-2019 1,618 0.03 20,724 0.36

Purchase 03-Jan-2020 500 0.01 21,224 0.37

Purchase 10-Jan-2020 516 0.01 21,740 0.37

Sale 17-Jan-2020 (1,818) -0.03 19,922 0.34

Purchase 31-Jan-2020 3,665 0.06 23,587 0.41

Purchase 07-Feb-2020 2,000 0.03 25,587 0.44

Purchase 21-Feb-2020 1,000 0.02 26,587 0.46

Purchase 13-Mar-2020 500 0.01 27,087 0.47

Purchase 20-Mar-2020 500 0.01 27,587 0.47

At the end of the Year 27,587 0.47 27,587 0.47

5 SHYAMSUNDER GUPTA

6 GOLDEN GOENKA COMMERCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl .
No.

Name of the Shareholder

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

POCL
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7 ASHWANI BHARTIA

8 APARNAA SAREES PRIVATE LIMITED

9 C G RAMAKRISHNAN

JT1 : RAJALAKSHMI RAMAKRISHNAN

10 AMIN RASSOUL HIRIDJEE

At the beginning of the year 4,888 0.08 4,888 0.08

Purchase 09-Aug-2019 3,461 0.06 8,349 0.14

Purchase 23-Aug-2019 5,832 0.10 14,181 0.24

Purchase 30-Aug-2019 9,033 0.16 23,214 0.40

Purchase 11-Oct-2019 4,094 0.07 27,308 0.47

Purchase 27-Dec-2019 350 0.01 27,658 0.48

Sale 06-Mar-2020 (484) -0.01 27,174 0.47

At the end of the Year 27,174 0.47 27,174 0.47

At the beginning of the year 21,250 0.38 21,250 0.38

Sale 05-Apr-2019 (1,091) -0.02 20,159 0.35

Purchase 12-Apr-2019 309 0.01 20,468 0.35

Sale 19-Apr-2019 (713) -0.01 19,755 0.34

Purchase 26-Apr-2019 500 0.01 20,255 0.35

Purchase 30-Sep-2019 1,027 0.02 21,282 0.37

Sale 31-Jan-2020 (538) -0.01 20,744 0.36

Purchase 07-Feb-2020 796 0.01 21,540 0.37

Purchase 14-Feb-2020 1,197 0.02 22,737 0.39

At the end of the Year 22,737 0.39 22,737 0.39

At the beginning of the year 19,013 0.34 19,013 0.34

Purchase 31-May-2019 2,000 0.03 21,013 0.36

At the end of the Year 21,013 0.36 21,013 0.36

At the beginning of the year 20,145 0.36 20,145 0.36

At the end of the Year 20,145 0.35 20,145 0.35

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders

(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

Sl .
No.

Name of the Shareholder

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

20

Twenty Fifth Annual Report 2019-2020



(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Share holding
during the year/

Shareholding at year end

Sl .
No.

Name of the Shareholder

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

At the beginning of the year 636,620 11.42 636,620 11.42

Purchase 07-Jun-2019 2,187 0.04 638,807 10.99

Purchase 13-Dec-2019 10,163 0.17 648,970 11.17

Purchase 20-Dec-2019 3,211 0.06 652,181 11.22

Purchase 27-Dec-2019 1,941 0.03 654,122 11.25

Purchase 31 147 0.00 654,269 11.26

Purchase 31-Mar-2020 8,634 0.15 662,903 11.40

Merger Allotment 184,679 3.18 847,582 14.58

At the end of the Year 847,582 14.58 847,582 14.58

At the beginning of the year 623,461 11.18 623,461 11.18

At the end of the year 623,461 10.73 623,461 10.73

At the beginning of the year 502,737 9.02 502,737 9.02

Purchase 14-Jun-2019 155 0.00 502,892 8.65

Merger Allotment 28,053 0.48 530,945 9.13

At the end of the year 530,945 9.13 530,945 9.13

At the beginning of the year 1,815 0.03 1,815 0.03

At the end of the Year 1,815 0.03 1,815 0.03

At the beginning of the year 17 0.00 17 0.00

Purchase 22-Nov-2019 200 0.00 217 0.00

Purchase 06-Dec-2019 400 0.01 617 0.01

Purchase 27-Dec-2019 1,100 0.02 1,717 0.03

Purchase 31-Dec-2019 1,800 0.03 3,517 0.06

Sale 31-Jan-2020 (3,450) -0.06 67 0.00

Purchase 31-Mar-2020 1,285 0.02 1,352 0.02

At the end of the Year 1,352 0.02 1,352 0.02

At the beginning of the year 1,681 0.03 1,681 0.03

Purchase 07-Jun-2019 500 0.01 2,181 0.04

Purchase 23-Aug-2019 500 0.01 2,681 0.05

At the end of the Year 2,681 0.05 2,681 0.05

1 ASHISH BANSAL

2 ANIL KUMAR BANSAL

3 R.P. BANSAL

4 ANIL KUMAR SACHDEV

5 SHOBA RAMAKRISHNAN

6 A VIJAY ANAND

-Dec-2019

POCL
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(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the
beginning

Cumulative Share holding
during the year/

Shareholding at year end

Sl .
No.

Name of the Shareholder

No of
Shares

% of total
shares
of the

Company

% of total
shares
of the

Company

No of
Shares

Secured
Loans

excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Total
Indebtedness

DepositsSecured
Loans

excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Total
Indebtedness

At the beginning of the year - 0.00 - 0.00

At the end of the Year - 0.00 - 0.00

At the beginning of the year 330 0.01 330 0.01

Merger Allotment 7,124 0.12 7,454 0.13

At the end of the Year 7,454 0.13 7,454 0.13

At the beginning of the year 3,220 0.06 3,220 0.06

Merger Allotment 10,863 0.19 14,083 0.24

At the end of the Year 14,083 0.24 14,083 0.24

7 M Ramasubramani

8 Usha Sankar

9 K. Kumaravel

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

TOTAL (i+ii+iii) 14,164.91 52.81 2.85 14,220.57

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

TOTAL (i+ii+iii) 4,203.49 1,430.17 0.66 5,634.32

Principal Amount 14,164.91 48.18 2.65 14215.74

ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 4.63 0.20 4.83

iii) Interest accrued but not due 0.00 0.00 0.00 0

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

i) Addition 0.00 1,838.32 0.04 1838.36

ii) Reduction 9,961.42 460.96 2.23 10424.61

I) Principal Amount 4,196.98 1,298.19 0.66 5495.83

ii) Interest due but not paid 0.00 131.98 0.00 131.98

iii) Interest accrued but not due 6.51 0.00 0.00 6.51

V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
(I in Lakhs)
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director(s), Whole Time Director and/or Manager:                  ( In Lakhs)j

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Mr. Anil
Kumar Bansal

Mr.Ashish
Bansal

Mr. R.P Bansal

Total Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in

section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 108.00 216.65 108.00 432.65

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the

Income Tax Act, 1961 6.09 0.26 7.82 14.17

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3)

of the Income Tax Act, 1961 - - - 0.00

2 Stock option - - - 0.00

3 Sweat Equity - - - 0.00

4 Commission

- as % of profit - - - 0.00

- others (specify) - - - 0.00

5 Others ( Employer's PF Contribution) - 14.40 - 14.40

Total (A) 114.09 231.31 115.82 461.22

Ceiling as per the Act #

# The remuneration is paid in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of the Directors

Mr. G.P.
Venkateswaran

Dr. Shoba
Ramakrishnan

Mr. A Vijay
Anand

Total Amount

B.    Remuneration to other directors: ( In Lakhs)j

1 Independent Directors

TOTAL (1) 1.00 0.50 1.25 1.50 4.25

2 Other Non Executive Directors

TOTAL (2)

TOTAL (B)= (1+2)

Total Managerial

Remuneration  ( A + B )

Overall Ceiling as per the Act #

(a) Fee for attending Board/
Committee Meetings 1.00 0.50 1.25 1.50 4.25

(b) Commission - - - - -

(c ) Others, please specify - - - - -

(a) Fee for attending Board/
Committee Meetings - - - - -

(b) Commission - - - - -

(c ) Others, please specify - - - - -

- - - - -

1.00 0.50 1.25 1.50 4.25

465.47

Mr. Anil Kumar
Sachdev

# The remuneration is paid in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act 2013

POCL
®
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl.No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel Total

1 Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. 26.25 18.20 44.45

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the

Income Tax Act, 1961 0.21 0.38 0.59

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961                        -                           -                          -

2 Stock Option - -                          -

3 Sweat Equity - -                          -

4 Commission

- as % of profit - - -

- Others, specify - -                          -

5 Others ( Employer's PF Contribution) 1.30 0.81 2.11

TOTAL 27.76 19.39 47.15

( In Lakhs)j

Company Secretary
Mr. K. Kumaravel

Chief Financial Officer
Mrs. Usha Sankar

VII. PENALTIES/ PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

Anil Kumar Bansal Ashish Bansal

There were no penalities or punishments levied on the company, its Directors or Officers in Default during the year.

Also, there was no necessity for the Company, its Directors or Officers in Default to compound any offence.

Date : 13th August 2020

Place : Chennai Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00232223) (DIN: 01543967)
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ANNEXURE II

Disclosure under Section 197(12) of Companies Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company
for the financial year:

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman and Whole-time Director 55:1

Mr. Ashish Bansal Managing Director 109:1

Mr. R.P Bansal Whole-time Director 55:1

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman and Whole-time Director 02.11

Mr. Ashish Bansal Managing Director 0.11

Mr. R.P Bansal Whole-time Director 01.71

Mrs. Usha Sankar Chief Financial Officer 0.41

Mr. K. Kumaravel Company Secretary 0.36

3. The Percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 13.03%

4 The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of company as on 31 March, 2020: 566

5. The average annual increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel during the last
financial year was around 6.50%, as compared to increase in managerial remuneration of 0.94%.

6 Affirmation:

It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid during the year is as per the remuneration policy of the Company.

Date: 13th August 2020 Executive Chairman Managing Director
Place: Chennai DIN: 00232223 DIN: 01543967

Name of the Director Category Ratio

2. The Percentage increase in remuneration of Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the
financial year:

Name of the Director Category Ratio

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Anil Kumar Bansal Ashish Bansal

st
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ANNEXURE III

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken

and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs:

POCL has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility policy (CSR policy) in compliance with the provisions of the

Companies Act 2013 and the same is available on http://pocl.co.in/policies/CSR-Policy.pdf

Our key focus area of CSR includes

Providing education to the poor and destitute children,

Health Care

Empowerment of Women and others.

2. Composition of the CSR Committee:

i. Mr. Vijay Anand - Chairman of the Committee

ii. Mr. Ashish Bansal - Member

iii. Ms. Shoba Ramakrishnan - Member

3. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years: 4,677.98 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): 93.56 lacs

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year-

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year- 93.56 Lacs

b) Amount unspent, if any: Nil

c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.

( in lakhs)

l

l

l

s

s

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)

S.No CSR Project Sector in Projects or Amount Amount spent Cumulative Amount

or activity which the programmes (1) outlay on the expenditure spent:

identified project is Local area of (budget) projects upto the Direct or
covered other project or reporting through

(2) Specify the program or programs period implementing

State and wise Sub-heads: agency

district where (1)Direct

projects or expenditure

programs was on projects

undertaken or programs.

(2) Overheads

1 Medical Aid Health-care Chennai, Tamil 11.00 10.78 10.78 Direct - Sri

for under- Nadu-provided Swami

privileged Medical Vivekananda

Ventilator and Medical

treatment for Mission/Kola

cancer. Saraswathi

Agarwal

Samaj Health

Centre

s

s
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2 Rural Flooring work SIPCOT 18.00 17.46 17.46 Direct

Development outside the  - industrial Park,

providing Factory in Sriperumpudhur,

infrastructure SIPCOT Tamil Nadu.

in and around Industrial

the villages park,

surrounding

the Plant and purchase

of Air

Conditioner

for public

utility service

3 Contribution Livelihood Contribution 4.00 3.96 3.96 Direct to

to orphanage, enhancement for Charitable District and

flood relief projects activities, Food through,

and safety distribution, Pamban

cameras Construction of Charitable

pathway to old Trust and

age home and Aum Pranava

Safety cameras Ashram Trust.

in Chennai and

other places in

Tamil Nadu.

4 Sponsoring Education Construction of 65.00 62.00 62.00 Direct and

education to new School through

the poor and Building in Krishnade-

destitute Paruthipattu, varaya

students Chennai and Educational

sponsoring for and Cultural

education. Trust and

Jaigopal

Garodia

Vivekananda

Vidyalaya trust.

The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in

compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.

Date :13th August 2020
Place :Chennai Director Chairman- CSR Committee Managing Director

Sriperumpudhur

TOTAL 98.00 94.20 94.20

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years

or anypart thereof,thecompanyshallprovide the reasons for notspending theamount in its Boards report.

N.A

7. Responsibility Statement:

For and on behalf of
Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

Shoba Ramakrishnan A Vijay Anand Ashish Bansal

POCL
®
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ANNEXURE IV

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

ST

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

CIN: L24294TN1995PLC030586

4 Floor, KRM Centre,

No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet

Chennai-600 031

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

corporate practices by (CIN: L24294TN1995PLC030586) (hereinafter called the

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed

and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and

authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,

during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31 March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed

hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in

the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Pondy Oxides

andChemicalsLimited (theCompany) for the financial yearended on31 March,2020according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992

(‘SEBI Act’):

a) TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India(SubstantialAcquisitionofSharesandTakeovers)Regulations,2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

c) TheSecurities and ExchangeBoard of India (Issue ofCapital andDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

th

st

st
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d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 ;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2018 ;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,

1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 ; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 ;

(vi) Following other laws applicable specifically to the company:

a) Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Rules,

1982

b) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution)

Rules, 1975.

c) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and The Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986

d) Hazardous Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016

e) The Factories Act, 1948 & respective State Factories rules

f) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

g) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946

h) Industrial Disputes Act,1947

i) Minimum Wages Act,1948

j) Payment of Wages Act,1936

k) The Tamil Nadu Shops and Establishment Act,1947 and Rules thereunder

l) The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

m) Payment of Bonus Act,1965

n) Payment of Gratuity Act,1972

o) The Employees Compensation Act, 1923

p) The Legal Metrology Act, 2009 and the rules made thereunder.

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued

by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Uniform Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited pursuant to the provisions of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above except

1

2

3

4

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Delay in intimation to BSE of amendment of the “Codes of Fair Disclosure and

Conduct” of the Company formulated under regulation 8(1) and 8(2) read with 3(2A) of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider

Trading), Regulations 2015.

(Footnotes)
1

2

3

4

Not applicable to the Company, as the Company does not have any Employee stock option scheme.

Not applicable to the Company, as the Company does not have any debts listed.

Not applicable to the Company, as there was no delisting done during the year.

Not applicable to the Company, as there was no buy-back by the Company during the year.

POCL
®

31



We further report that

We further report that

We further report that

For KSM Associates, Company Secretaries

Krishna Sharan Mishra

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Directors for the year under review. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors

that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent,

at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views, wherever there is any, are captured and

recorded as part of the minutes.

there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

during the audit period there were no events/actions having a major bearing on the company’s

affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. except that:

- The Company has allotted 2,36,397 fully paidup equity share of 10/- each to the share holders of Meloy Metals

Private Limited on Account of its merger with the company in compliance with scheme of amalgamation approved by the

National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai vide order dated 21 February 2020.

This Report is to be read along with Annexure Aof even date which forms integral part of this Report.

Place : Chennai

Date : 13 August 2020 Partner

FCS 6447; CP 7039

UDIN: F006447B000574982

s
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ANNEXURE - A

To,

The Members,

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

CIN: L24294TN1995PLC030586

4 Floor, KRM Centre, No. 2, Harrington Road

Chetpet, Chennai-600 031

Our secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

a. Maintenance of secretarial and other records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the relevant records based on our audit.

b. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the

correctness of the contents of the relevant records and compliances. The verification was done on test basis to

verify that correct facts are reflected in secretarial and other relevant records. We believe that the processes and

practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial, Cost and tax records and books of accounts of

the Company.

d. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance of laws, rules and

regulations and happening of events etc.

e. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the

responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of the procedures on test/sample

basis.

f. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

g. The Audit has been done using electronic means, in view of restrictions placed by the Government on account of

Covid-19 pandemic.

Place : Chennai
Date : 13 August 2020 Partner

FCS 6447; CP 7039

UDIN: F006447B000574982

th

th

For KSM Associates, Company Secretaries

Krishna Sharan Mishra

POCL
®

33



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

-INDIAN OUTLOOK

Industry Structure and Developments

Global Lead Industry

Indian Lead Industry

Unitwise or Product wise performance - Lead & Lead Alloys

Zinc and Zinc Oxides

Risks Opportunities and Threats

Indian economy has slowed down to its lowest phase in the decade to 4.2% when compared to 6.1% in 2018-19. With a

considerable revenue shortfall and limited expenditure compression, the government's fiscal deficit overshot its revised

estimates by a massive 170,000 crore, taking the deficit for FY2020 to 4.6% of GDP as against a revised estimate of

3.8%. India's GDP growth rate slowed down to 3.1% in the fourth quarter of 2019-20 with the Corona virus further ailing the

consumer demand and private investments in the March quarter.

Lead Metal industry are about 150 years old; and used, in the manufacture of telecom, automotives, railways, inverter,

UPS, solar energy batteries and so on. “Lead batteries are finding new applications in electric mobility, electric scooters,

e-rickshaws, e-bikes etc. Presently, battery manufacturing accounts for greater than 80% of lead consumption while

recycled lead accounts for approximately the same market share of lead supply.

Lead is a chemical element that is characterized as a base post-transition metal. Australia holds the world's largest Lead

reserves, at some 36 million metric tons as of 2019, although China has the highest Lead mine production worldwide. Lead

prices were volatile during the year, rising and falling in response to developments in International Trade Dispute between

the US and its trading partners. Lead price increased from about $ 2,020 per MT at the beginning of April 2019 and reached

the highest / lowest of $ 2,265 per MT / $ 1,589 per MT respectively during the year and ended the year at $ 1,712 per MT.

The average lead price was $ 2121 per MT during the year down by 8% from a year ago.

During the year 2019-20, the Company increased its overall production capacity and significant improvements have been

done in capacity utilisation. The company increased its annual production of Lead Metal and Alloys from 58,863 MT in the

year 2018-19 to 72086 MT in 2019-20 in all its units, showing an increase of 22% over the previous year with an average

capacity utilization of 100%. As informed in the earlier annual report your Company received consent for establishment

from Tamil Nadu Pollution Control Board to increase the plant capacity to 48,000 MT in Tamil Nadu and in the process of

installing Machineries at higher capacity thereby overall Lead manufacturing capacity of all units together will reach

84,000 MT per annum. Further due to merger of Meloy Metals pvt limited with your company additional capacity of 48000

MT obtained in your Andhra Pradesh unit and due to the above total capacity of the Companywill reach 1,32,000 MT per

anum by 2020-2021.

During the year, your Company achieved the production of Zinc Oxide of 609 MT against the installed capacity of 3600MT

per annum. As informed in the previous annual report the Company obtained vendor approval from various Zinc Oxide

manufacturers and started supplying materials to them. Based on the commercial viability, the Company is slowly

increasing the capacity utilisation in Zinc and Zinc Oxide plant.

The Metal Industry has been on an uptick, underpinned by supply-demand deficit, backed by bullish global growth

indicators and supply related reforms. The long-term trends in the industry, the demand for the metals and our strong

balance sheet provides us many opportunities to create value for stakeholders. POCL's success as an organasation

depends on our ability to identify opportunities and leverage them while mitigating the risks that arise while conducting our

business.

s

The Volume of secondary Lead and LeadAlloys produced in India in 2019 was over 6,45,000 MT. The main use for Lead in

India is Lead Acid Batteries. Lead Acid battery usage is colossal in railways, transportation, telecommunication,

automobiles and many other sectors and is further increasing with solar and wind schemes launched by government.
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Pricing, growing demand and ongoing market volatility are the major challenges faced by the Company. POCL seeks to

maintain balance sheet liquidity and implement plans to boost operational cash flow for long-termprofitability. Cash

generation and preservation remain a key focus.

The Company is subject to the risk that changes in foreign currency values impact the Company's export revenues and

import of raw materials. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from currency exposures, primarily with

respect to US Dollars. POCL has in place a robust risk management framework for identification and monitoring and

mitigation of commodity price and foreign exchange risks. The risks are tracked and monitored on a regular basis

andmitigation strategies are adopted in line with the risk management framework. POCL primarily use forward exchange

contracts to hedge the effects of movement in exchange rates.

Your Board has devised systems, policies and procedures / frameworks, which are currently operational within your

Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, which includes adherence to policies, safeguarding

its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely

preparation of reliable financial information. In line with best practices, the Audit Committee and the Board reviews these

internal control systems to ensure they remain effective and are achieving their intended purpose. Where weaknesses, if

any, are identified as a result of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to strengthen controls. These controls are in

turn reviewed at regular intervals.

POCLrecorded a strong operational and financial performance in the FY 2020, delivering growth year over year. Growth in

volume resulted in EBITDA of 3,904.01 lakhs, even in unfavorable price environment. The strong volume performance

and efficiency in operations contributed to an increase in the total net sales of the Company by 16% to 1,21,987 lakhs (PY

Net Sales: 1,04,888 lakhs). The exports increased by 24% to 68068 lakhs for the year 2019-20 from 54930 lakhs in

the previous year.

Revenue for the year was 1,21,987 lakhs, up by 16% y-o-y.

Depreciation for the year was 786.67 lakhs compared to 519.26 lakhs in the previous year and the increase in

depreciation is mainly on account of addition of fixed assets and merger of Meloy Metals Pvt Limited during the current

year.

Tax expense for the year FY2020 was 488.22 lakhs against 1,814.98 lakhs for the FY 2019, showing average tax rate of

23% compared to 34.98% for the previous year due adoption of new tax rate introduced by the Government u/s 115BAAof

Income Tax Act 1961.

The profit after tax before exceptional item was 1,634.56 lakhs in FY2020.

Earnings Per Share for FY 2020 were 29.28 per share.

Considering the profits of the Company for the year, the Board had declared an Interim Dividend of 30% on the equity

shares of 10/- each. The Board has not recommended any Final dividend for the year. The total Dividend payout

(inclusive of Dividend Distribution Tax) for the FY 2020 was 201.05 lakhs.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy

Discussion on Financial Performance with respect to Operational performance

Revenue

Depreciation and Amortization

Net Interest

Taxation

Profit after Tax (before exceptional item)

EPS

Dividend

j

j

j j j

j

j j

j

j

j j

j

j

j

j

The average cost of borrowings has been retained at 8% for the FY 2020. Finance cost for the FY2020 was 994.56 lakhs

which was considerably decreased from 1,122.34 lakhs in FY 2019 inspite of increase in Turnover by 16%.
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Shareholders fund

Net Fixed Assets

Material developments in Human resources/Industrial relations front, including no. of people employed

Details of significant changes in key financial ratios

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

Total Shareholders fund as on March 31, 2020 aggregated 15,044.98 lakhs as compared to 13,040.03 lakhs as at

March 31, 2019. The increase in the shareholders' fund was primarily on account of profits made during the year and on

account of security premium received on account allotment of shares due to merger of Meloy Metals Pvt Limited with your

company.

The net fixed assets as on March 31, 2020 was 5,090.24 lakhs compared to 3,262.46 lakhs for the previous year. The

capital work in progress for the year as on March 31, 2020 is 188.33 lakhs.

Your Board has devised systems, policies and procedures / frameworks, which are currently operational within your

Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, which includes adherence to policies, safeguarding

its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely

preparation of reliable financial information. In line with best practices, the Audit Committee and the Board reviews these

internal control systems to ensure they remain effective and are achieving their intended purpose. Where weaknesses, if

any, are identified as a result of the reviews, new procedures are put in place to strengthen controls. These controls are in

turn reviewed at regular intervals.

Statements made herein describing the Company's expectations or predictions are “forward-looking statements”. The

actual results may differ materially from those expected or predicted depending on market conditions, input costs,

economic development, Government policies and other incidental factors.

j j

j j

j

Date : 13th August 2020

Place : Chennai Executive Chairman Managing Director

DIN: 00232223 DIN: 01543967

Anil Kumar Bansal Ashish Bansal

Key Financial Ratios 2019-20 2018-19 Change % Remarks

Debtor Turnover (in times) 16.72 11.67 43% Due to optimum utilization of receivables and
control over credit period on customers

Inventory Turnover (in times) 13.50 10.12 33% Due to effective inventory management

Interest Coverage Ratio

(in times) 3.13 5.62 -44% Due to reduction in profits

Current Ratio (in times) 2.50 1.65 51% Represents healthy financial status

Debt Equity Ratio (in times) 0.05 0.06 -22% Represents reduction in long term borrowings

Operating Profit Margin (%) 4.54 7.91 -43% Due to reduction in profits

Net Profit Margin (%) 1.34 3.22 -58% Due to reduction in profits

Return on Networth (%) 11.64 29.45 -60% Due to reduction in profits
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REPORT ON

Time Director

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In accordance with the Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), as applicable, the report containing the

details of CorporateGovernancesystems andprocesses atPondy OxidesandChemicalsLimited (POCL) isas follows:

Corporate Governance involves the balancing of interests of the stakeholders of a Company, Management, Customers,

Suppliers, financiers, the Government and the Community. Corporate governance encompasses practically every sphere

of management, from action plans and internal controls to performance measurement and corporate disclosure. At POCL

we ensure that the balance is maintained at all levels. We strive to enhance shareholder’s value and protect the interest of

the stakeholders by improving the corporate performance and accountability.

POCLfollows a traditional and holistic approach in delivering accountability to all its stakeholders.

We keep our governance practices under continuous review and benchmark ourselves to best practices.

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and

clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as applicable, with regard to Corporate

governance.

POCL has ensured the presence of an active and Independent Board to ensure the highest standards of Corporate

Governance. During the year and as on datetwo of the Independent Director’s on the Board has resigned due to personal

reasons. Hence the Company has inducted one more Independent Director to the Board during the year 2019-20

tocomply the regulation and to participate in the development of policy and major decision making process at Board

Meetings.The Company, as on the date of this report has in all 6 Directors with considerable professional experience in

divergent areas connected with corporate functioning.The Board comprises of 3 Executive Directors and 3 Non-Executive

Independent Directors. The Independent Directors in the Board are competent and highly respected professionals from

their respective fields and have vast experience, which enable them to contribute effectively to the company.

Anil Kumar Bansal 00232223 Chairman and Whole-

Ashish Bansal 01543967 Managing Director Promoter – Executive

R.P. Bansal 00232708 Whole Time Director Promoter – Executive

Shoba Ramakrishnan 02773030 Director Independent -Non Executive

A Vijay Anand 06431219 Director Independent- Non Executive

M Ramasubramani 07999117 Director Independent- Non Executive

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal and Mr. R.P. Bansal are brothers and Mr. Ashish Bansal is the Son of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal. None

of the other Directors are related inter-se.

The details of the shareholding of the Directors are provided in Form MGT-9 which forms part of this Annual Report

The Composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 of SEBI Listing Regulations and as per the provisions of

Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors on the Board hold directorships in more than ten public companies. Further, none of them is a

member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all the public companies in which

he/she is a Director.

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Board Composition and Category of Directors

Name of the Director DIN Designation Category

Promoter – Executive

Anil Kumar Sachdev* 00043431 Director Independent-Non Executive

G P Venkateswaran* 01509307 Director Independent-Non Executive

*Ceased to be the member of the Board with effect from 25 January 2020 for Mr. G P Venkateswaran and 29 June 2020 for Mr. Anil Kumar
Sachdev.

th th
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Pursuant to the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with

Schedule V, Part C (2) (i), the Board of Directors of the company hereby confirm that in the opinion of the Board, the

Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified under Regulation 16 (1)(b) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the Management. A formal letter of appointment has

been issued to the Independent Directors and the same is also hosted on the website of the Company.

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on the Company/ Business Policy and Strategy apart from

other Board businesses. The Notice along with the Agenda of the Board meetings are given well in advance to all the

Directors and the Board Meetings are generally held at the registered office of the Company situated at Chennai.

The Agenda for the Meeting covers items set out as per the guidelines in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent it is relevant and applicable. The Agenda includes detailed notes on the

items to be discussed at the meeting to enable the Directors to take an informed decision.Where it is not practicable to

attach any document to the agenda, it is tabled before the meeting with specific reference to this effect.

During the financial year ended March 31, 2020, seven Board Meetings were held and the maximum interval between any two

meetings waswell within themaximumallowedgapof 120 days.The detailsof theBoard Meetingsheldaregivenbelow:

May04, 2019 7 3

May 27, 2019 7 7

August 12, 2019 7 6

October 29, 2019 7 5

January 25, 2020 7 6

March 13, 2020 6 4

March 21, 2020 7 3

Anil Kumar Bansal 7 Yes - - -

Ashish Bansal 7 Yes - - -

R.P. Bansal 3 Yes - - -

Anil Kumar Sachdev * 4 Yes - - -

Shoba Ramakrishnan 5 Yes - - -

G.P.Venkateswaran* 2 Yes - - -

AVijay Anand 6 Yes - - -

M Ramasubramani** 0 N.A.

B. Board Meetings

Date Board Strength No. of Directors Present

C. Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting and number of other Directorship(s)

and Chairmanship(s) / Membership(s) of Committees of each Director in various Companies:

Name of Director Number of

Directorships in

other Companies

as on31-03-2020

No. of Membership(s)/

Chairmanship(s) of Board Committee

In other Public Companies

as on 31-03-2020

Attendance at

Meetings

during 2019-20

Board

Meeting

Last

AGM
Chairman Member

*Ceased to be the Member of the Board with effect from 25 January 2020 for Mr.G.P.Venkateswaran and 29 June 2020 for Mr.Anil Kumar
Sachdev.

**Appointed as Member of the Board with effect from 13 March 2020.

th th

th
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In accordance with Regulation 26 of SEBI Listing Regulations, Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committees

and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees in all public limited companies including Pondy Oxides and Chemicals

Limited have been considered.

None of the Directors are holding any position as Directors/ Committee members in any Listed Entity.

Mr. Anilkumar Sachdev 1815

Mr. AVijay Anand 2681

Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan 1352

Dr. M Ramasubramani 0

The Company has not issued any convertible instruments.

The Company’s Independent Directors met on January 25, 2020 without the presence of the Executive Directors. During

the meeting, the Independent Directors inter-alia reviewed the performance of the non- Independent Directors, Board as a

whole, and the Chairman after taking into the views of executive and non-executive Directors. They also assessed the

quality, content and timeliness of flow of informationbetween the Management and the Board that is necessary for the

Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

Attendance of Independent Directors at the meeting is given hereunder:

Mr. Anilkumar Sachdev Yes

Mr. G P Venkateswaran No

Mr. AVijay Anand Yes

Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan Yes

Dr. M Ramasubramani* NA

The Company has a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors. At the time of appointing new Non

Executive Independent Directors, a formal letter of appointment is given to them, which explains their role, function, duties

and responsibilities in the Company. The Executive Directors provide an overview of the Company’s business operations

to the new Non-Executive Directors. The New Director is also explained in detail the compliance required from him under

the Companies Act, the Listing Regulations and other various statutes. Further on an ongoing basis as a part of the

Agenda of the Board meeting and the Committee meeting, presentations are regularly made to the Independent Directors

on various matters inter alia covering the Company’s business and operations, industry strategy, finance and other

relevant matters.The details of the Familiarization program for directors is available on the website link:

http://pocl.co.in/policies/Details-of-Familiarisation-programme.pdf

Name of Non-Executive Director No. of Shares held

E. Separate Independent Directors’Meeting

Name of the Director Whether Present or not

F. Familiarization Programme

* Appointed with effect from 13 March 2020th
.

D. Number of Shares and Convertible Instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on 31.03.2020
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G. Resignation of Independent Director

Skills/Expertise/Competencies of the Board of Directors

Skill Description

Name of

Director Strategy Business Chemical

III. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

During the year and till the date of Annual report Mr. G P Venkateswaranand Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev, Independent

Directors, have resigned from the Board with effect from 25 January 2020 and 29 June 2020 respectively due to their

pre-occupation, before the expiry of their termin November 2020 and March 2024 respectively. They have confirmed that

there were no material reasons for their resignation.

The Board Members are equipped with varied experience and also possess the required skills that allow them to make

effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

Leadership / Strategy Experience in Leadership roles and industry expertise which help in strategic

planning, effective decision making and risk management.

Global Business Experience in driving business success/ dynamics in markets around the

world, understanding of various Geographical Markets, Industry verticals and

regulatory jurisdictions.

Metal/ Chemical Industry Widespread knowledge in Metal /Chemical Industry and technical knowledge of the

manufacturing process.

Sales and Marketing Well versed in developing strategies to grow sales and increase the market share

and enhance the Organisation’s reputation.

Finance Financial expertise resulting in proficiency in complex financial management and

capital allocation and a strong ability to assess financial impact of decision making

and ensure profitable and sustainable growth.

Technology Technology expertise resulting in knowledge of creation of new business models.

Regulatory Strong Knowledge and expertise in Corporate Law and other regulatory

including Industry specific Laws.

Anil Kumar Bansal

Ashish Bansal

R.P. Bansal

Shoba Ramakrishnan –

AVijay Anand

M Ramasubramani

The Board of Directors have set up Committees as applicable to the Company to deal with specific areas/activities as

mandated by the applicable regulations. The Board clearly defines the role of each committee and the Chairman of the

respective Committee informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The

minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board has established the following

committees-

th th

compliances

Leadership/ Global Metal/ Sales Finance Technology Regulatory

and

Industry Marketing

P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P

P P P P P P P

P P P P P

P P P P P P

P P P P P

–

–

– –
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(I) Audit Committee

Terms of Reference in brief

Name of Director Designation Attendance

The constitution and terms of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance with Section 177 of the Companies Act,

2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Company has a qualified and independent Audit Committee comprising of Non-ExecutiveIndependent Directors.

The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director.

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the

financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory auditors including cost

auditors of the Company.

Review of quarterly/half-yearly/annual financial statements with reference to changes, if any in accounting policies

and reasons for the same.

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by management, and significant

adjustments made in the financial statements, if any arising out of audit findings.

Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence, performance and effectiveness of audit process.

Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory auditors and internal auditors, and adequacy of

internal control systems.

Formulating the scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting internal audit.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism.

Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing qualifications, experience, background, etc. of the

candidate.

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems.

The Audit Committee also looks into the matters as are specifically referred to it by the Board of Directors besides looking

into the mandatory requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations and provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The composition of the committee and Chairman and the Members of the Committee are as under:

Mr. AVijay Anand ** Independent Director- Chairman 5

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev * Independent Director- Chairman 4

Mr. G.P. Venkateswaran* Independent Director- Member 2

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman & Whole time Director - Member 1

Dr. M.Ramasubramani ** Independent Director - Member N.A

During the Financial Year 2019-20, five (5) meetings of the Audit Committee were held on May 27, 2019; August 12, 2019;

October 29, 2019, January 25, 2020 and March 13, 2020. The maximum time gap between any of the two consecutive

meetings was not more than 120 days. The necessary quorum was present in all the meetings.

Mr. K Kumaravel, GM- Finance and Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

l

Composition and Attendance

*Ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from 25 January 2020 for Mr.G.P.Venkateswaran and 29 June 2020 for Mr.Anil Kumar

Sachdev.

**Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 29 June 2020 for Mr.A.Vijay Anand and as Member of the Committee for

Dr.M.Ramasubramani.

th th

th

POCL
®

41



(ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Terms of Reference in brief

Composition and Attendance:

Performance Evaluation

Remuneration Policy

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted as per the provisions of Regulation 19 of

SEBI (LODR) Regulations and Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Identification of persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed to Senior Management

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and renewal.

Evaluating the performance of the Directors and providing necessary reports to the Board for further evaluation and

consideration.

Recommending to the Board on remuneration to the Directors, KMP’s and SMP’s of the Company.

Retaining, motivating and promoting talent amongst the employees and ensuring long term sustainability of

talented personnel by creation of competitive advantage through a structured talent review.

Two (2) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held on May 27, 2019 and March 13, 2020.

The composition of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and attendance of members are given below:

The Chairman and the Members of the Committee are as under:

Mr. A Vijay Anand * Independent Director- Chairman 2

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev ** Independent Director- Chairman 1

Mr. G.P.Venkateswaran ** Independent Director- Member 1

Dr.Shoba Ramakrishnan * Independent Director- Member N.A

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal*** Chairman & Whole time Director- Member 1

Dr. M.Ramasubramani * Independent Director- Member N.A

Mr. K Kumaravel, GM- Finance and Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation of the performance of the Directors

including the Independent Directors. The criteria for Board evaluation covers the areas relevant to their functioning and is

in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, the Board had

carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, the directors individually and of the committees of the Board.

The policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes,

independence of a director and other matters, as required under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, can be

viewed on the Company’s website at www.pocl.co.in. There hasbeen no change in the policy since the last financial year.

We affirm that the remuneration paid to the directors is as per the terms laid down in the remuneration policy of the

Company.

l

l

l

l

Name of Director Designation Attendance

* Mr.A.Vijay Anand appointed as Chairman of the Committee and Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan and Dr.M.Ramasubramani as Member of the
committee with effect from 29 June 2020

**Ceased to be the Member of the Committee with effect from 25 January 2020 for Mr.G.P.Venkateswaran and 29 June 2020 for Mr.Anil Kumar
Sachdev as Chairman of the Committee

***Appointed as Member of the Committee with effect from 25 January 2020 and ceased to be Member of the Committee with effect from 29 June
2020

th

th th

th th

The Committee has also devised a Board Diversity policy which has been approved by the Board.
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DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

Name of the Director Salary Perquisites Total

Name of the Non-Executive Director Sitting Fee

(iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Composition and Attendance

Name of Director Designation Attendance

Details of Remuneration paid to the Managing Director and Whole Time Directors during 2019-20:

( In lakhs)

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal 108.00 6.09 114.09

Mr. Ashish Bansal 216.00 15.31 231.31

Mr. R.P. Bansal 108.00 7.82 115.82

The remuneration to the above directors is paid in accordance with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The tenure of

office of the Chairman, Managing Director and Whole Time Directors is for a period of three years from the date of their

respective appointments. The Company is not paying any Performance linked incentives to its Directors. There is no

separate provision for payment of severance fees.The Company has not allotted any Shares through Stock option.

The Non-Executive Independent Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending the Board meetings.

Sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors during 2019-20:

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev 1.00

Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan 1.25

Mr. G.P. Venkateswaran 0.50

Mr. AVijay Anand 1.50

The payment of sittings fees to the Non-Executive Directors is within the limits as prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013.

The constitution and terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in accordance with and covers all

the matters specified under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The said committee consists of Non-executive/IndependentDirectors

and the Committee redresses the Shareholders’grievances.

The Chairman and the Members of the Company are as under:

Mr. AVijay Anand ** Independent Director- Chairman 0

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev* Independent Director- Chairman 1

Mr. G.P. Venkateswaran* Independent Director- Member 1

Dr. Shoba Ramakrishnan Independent Director- Member 1

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal** Chairman & Whole time Director- Member 0

The Stakeholders’Relationship Committee met one (1) time on May 27, 2019.

j

*Mr.G.P.Venkateswaran and Mr.Anil Kumar Sachdev Ceased to be the Member/Chairman of the Committee with effect from 25 January 2020 and

29 June 2020 respectively

**Mr.Anil Kumar Bansal Appointed as member of the committee with effect from 25 January 2020, and Mr.Vijay Anand appointed as Chairman of

the committee with effect from 29 June 2020.

th

th

th

th

( In lakhs)j
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As required by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, Mr. K Kumaravel,

Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company, who oversees the redressal of Investor grievances.

During the year 2019-20, eight complaints pertaining to non-receipt of dividend warrants, share certificate, etc were

received and redressed to the satisfaction of the shareholders. There are no pending complaints as on March 31, 2020.

With an understanding to provide for quick responses for request of transfer, transmission etc., from the shareholders, the

Company has a committee in the style of “Share Transfer Committee”.

The Share Transfer Committee oversees and reviews all the matters connected with Share Transfers, issue of duplicate

share certificates.

The Chairman and the Members of the Company are as under:

Mr.Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman 1

Mr.Ashish Bansal Managing Director -Member 1

Mr.R.P.Bansal Director – Member 1

The share transfer committee met one (1) time during the year on January 23, 2020.Consequent to the order of restricting

the transfer of shares held in physical form, there is no need for a committee and hence dissolved with effect from 29 June

2020.

In compliance with Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, (Act) the Board has constituted the Corporate Social

Responsibility Committee. The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia consists of framing the CSR policy of the

Company and reviewing it from time to time and ensuring effective implementation and monitoring of CSR activities as per

the approved policy, plans and budget.

During the financial year 2019-20, two meetings of the committee were held on October 29, 2019 and January 25,2020.

The re-composition of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and the attendance of members are given below:

Mr. Vijay Anand * Independent Director- Chairman 0

Mr. Anil Kumar Sachdev** Independent Director- Chairman 2

Dr.Shoba Ramakrishnan Independent Director- Member 2

Mr. Ashish Bansal Managing Director- Member 2

(iv) Share Transfer Committee

Composition

Name of Director Designation Attendance

(v) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Name Category Attendance

th

* Appointed as Chairman of the Committee with effect from 29 June 2020

**Ceased to be the Chairman of the Committee with effect from 29 June 2020

th

th
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Annual General Meeting

Year Date Time Venue Special Resolution

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

Other General Meetings

Postal Ballot

Remote e-voting at the AGM

24 AGM-

September 18, 2019 306 T.T.K.Road,

Chennai– 600 014 of the Company.

23 AGM-

September 22, 2018 306 T.T.K.Road,

Chennai– 600 014 of the Company.

2. To approve the continuation of office of

Mr. G P Venkateswaran (DIN: 01509307),

as Independent Director on completion of

75 years of age.

22 AGM –

September 27, 2017 306 T.T.K.Road,

Chennai– 600 014 Managing Director of the Company.

2. Re-appointment of Mr.Ashish Bansal

(DIN:01543967) asManaging Director and

fixing his remuneration.

3. Revision in Remuneration of

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal (DIN:00232223),

Whole time Director.

4. Re-appointment of Mr.Anil Kumar Bansal

(DIN: 00232223) as Whole time Director

and fixing his remuneration.

5. Revision in Remuneration of Mr. R P Bansal

(DIN:00232708), Whole time Director

6. Re-appointment of Mr. R P Bansal

(DIN:00232708) as Whole time Director

and fixing his remuneration.

7. Increase in the Borrowing Powers and

power to mortgage properties of the

Company.

During the year the company has convened the Court convened Meeting of the Shareholders as per the order of the

National Company Law Tribunal on10 October 2019, for the merger of Meloy Metals Private Limited with our Company.

During the year under review the following Special resolution was passed through Postal Ballot.

Approval of the Scheme of Amalgamation of Meloy Metals Private Limited (Transferor Company) with Pondy Oxides and

Chemicals Limited (Transferee Company) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors (‘the Scheme’).

Pursuant to Ministry of Corporate Affairs Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, the AGM will be convened though Video

Conferencing (VC)/ Other AudioVisual Means (OAVM).

th

rd

nd

th

11.30 A.M. Music Academy, 1. To re-appoint Dr.Shoba Ramakrishnan

(DIN: 02773030), as an Independent Director

11.30 A.M. Music Academy, 1. To re-appoint Mr. Anilkumar Sachdev,

(DIN:00043431) as an Independent Director

11.30 A.M. Music Academy, 1. Revision in Remuneration of

Mr. Ashish Bansal (DIN:01543967),
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To allow the shareholders to vote on the resolutions proposed at the AGM, the Company has arranged for e-voting facility

at the AGM. The Company has engaged the services of CDSL to provide e-voting facility to all the members. Members

whose names appear on the Register of Members as on September, 2020, shall be eligible to participate in the e-voting.

The Company promptly reports all material information including quarterly/half year and annual audited financial results

to the Stock Exchange. All disclosures and communications to the BSE are filed electronically through the designated

portal.

The quarterly results are published in a leading Tamil & English Newspaper having wide circulation. Quarterly results are

also hosted in the company’s website www.pocl.co.in

The Company maintains a functional website www.pocl.co.in. The website contains a separate dedicated section

“Investor Relations” where all shareholders’ information is made available. The Company also has a designated

exclusive e-mail id complaints@pocl.co.in for investor services. The Company did not release any official news. No

presentations were made to the institutional investors or to the analysts.

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Ltd. was incorporated on March 21, 1995. The Corporate Identity Number allotted to the

Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs is L24294TN1995PLC030586. The Registered Office of the Company is

situated at KRM Centre, 4 Floor, # 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai – 600 031.

The 25 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Monday, September 28, 2020, at 3.00 p.m. through Video

Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means.

The Company’s financial year commences from April 1, 2019 and closes on March 31, 2020.

The Transfer books of the Company shall be closed from September 22, 2020 to September 28, 2020 (both days

inclusive).

Since the Board has not recommended any Final Dividend, the Dividend payment date is not applicable.

Equity Shares of the Company are listed in BSE Limited having its registered office at 25 Floor,P J Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai- 400 001

Stock Code : 532626

Security ID : PONDYOXIDE

ISIN : INE063E01046

Annual Listing Fee for the financial year 2019-20 has been paid by the Company to BSE. Annual Custody fee for the

financial year 2019-20 has been paid by the Company to NSDLand CDSLon receipt of invoices.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION

Company Registration Details

Annual General Meeting

Financial Year

Book Closure

Dividend Payment Date

Listing on Stock Exchange and Stock Code

Payment of Annual Listing Fees/Custodian Fees

th

th

th

l

l

l
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Share Market data:

Month High price Low Price

(ii) Performance of the Company’s Share Price vis-à-vis BSE Sensex during the financial year 2019-20:

Registrar and Share Transfer Agents

Share Transfer System

The Market price data for the financial year 2019-20 is as follows-

Apr-19 370.80 325.00

May-19 348.80 269.05

Jun-19 281.90 206.55

Jul-19 239.95 152.05

Aug-19 205.00 137.40

Sep-19 210.00 148.00

Oct-19 199.50 163.40

Nov-19 184.00 155.00

Dec-19 176.75 145.25

Jan-20 264.90 162.65

Feb-20 233.95 175.00

Mar-20 186.95 101.10

Cameo Corporate Services Limited

Subramanian Building, No.1, Club House Road

Chennai – 600 002

Tel: 044-2846 0390; Fax: 044 2846 0129

Email: cameo@cameoindia.com

Website: www.cameoindia.com

99.12% of the equity shares of the Company are held in electronic form. Transfers of these shares are done through the

depositories with no involvement of the Company. As regards transfer of shares, the transfer documents can be lodged

with the Registrar and Transfer Agents at the above mentioned address.
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Shares sent for physical transfers were registered promptly within 15 days from the date of receipt of completed and

validly executed documents. SEBI, effective April 01, 2019, prohibited physical transfer of shares of listed companies and

transfer only through Demat is allowed. The Board has delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission, etc. to

the Share Transfer Committee which approves the transfer. The same is taken note of at the subsequent Board Meeting.

During the year the Company has not received any physical Share transfer requests.

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in the BSE in dematerialized form. 99.12% of the Company’s equity

share capital is in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2020. The Company’s equity shares are regularly traded in BSE.

The details of mode of holding are as follows:

NSDL 47,64,080* 81.96

CDSL 9,97,702 17.16

Physical 50,608 0.88

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments in the past and hence as on

March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments.

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity

Mode of Holding Number of Shares held

as on March 31, 2020 of Shares as on March 31, 2020

Total 58,12,390 100.00

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, Conversion date and likely impact on equity

Categories of Shareholders as on March 31, 2020

Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on March 31, 2020

No. of Shares
held Shareholders Shareholders Shares held Shares held

% of total number

Number of % of Total Number of % of Total

* The 2,36,397 shares allotted to the shareholders of Meloy Metals Private Limited pursuant to the merger of Meloy Metals Private Limited with

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited vide NCLT order dated 21/02/2020 have been credited through NSDLon 13/05/2020.

Category Code Category No. of Shareholders Shares %

B Public Shareholding

Total 11,735 58,12,390 100.00

A(1) Shareholding of promoters 8 28,30,132 48.69

(1) & (2)A Body Corporates 91 1,30,488 2.24

(2)B Resident Individuals 10,978 42.73

(2)C(iv) Non Resident Individuals 295 2,31,992 3.99

(2)C(i)-(iii) & (v) Others 363 1,36,102 2.34

24,83,676

Upto 500 10,788 91.93 10,07,044 17.33

501-1000 554 4.72 4,12,262 7.09

1001-2000 211 1.80 3,08,219 5.30

2001-3000 75 0.64 1,87,407 3.23

3001-4000 38 0.32 1,32,753 2.28

4001-5000 13 0.11 58,751 1.01

5001-10000 29 0.25 1,94,870 3.35

Above 10000 27 0.23 35,11,084 60.41

Total 11,735 100 58,12,390 100
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Plant Locations

Smelter Division [SMD] - I

Smelter Division [SMD] – II

Zinc Refining Division [ZRD]

Address for correspondence

List of Credit Rating

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions

(b) Compliance(s) of matters relating to Capital Market

l

G-17 to G-19 & G-30 to G-32,

SIPCOT Industrial Park, Mambakkam Village,

Pondur Post, Sriperumbudhur,

District – Kancheepuram,

Tamil Nadu – 602 105

Plot # 78 B, Industrial Park,

Gajulamandyam Village ,

Renigunta Mandal,

Chittoor,

Andhra Pradesh – 517 520.

G-1, SIPCOT Industrial Park,

Pondur Post, Sriperumbudhur,

District – Kancheepuram,

Tamil Nadu – 602 105

Shareholder’s correspondence should be addressed to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents at the

address mentioned above.

Shareholders may also contact Mr. K. Kumaravel, Company Secretary, at the Registered Office of the Company at

KRM Centre, 4 Floor, #.2, Harrington Road. Chetpet. Chennai- 600031 for any assistance. He can also be contacted

at

Investors can also contact the Company at the designated exclusive e-mail id complaints@pocl.co.in for quick

responses and resolution to their queries and grievances.

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective

Depository Participant.

The Company has retained its rating from Brickwork Ratings India Private Limited to BWR A- (Pronounced as BWR Single

AMinus) for Long term borrowings and BWR A2+ (Pronounced as BWR ATwo Plus) for Short term borrowings.

During the year under review, there were no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential

conflict with the interests of the Company. The Company has adopted a policy on determining the material related

party transactions and dealing with the related party transactions and the same is available on the website of the

Company and it can be viewed at http://pocl.co.in/policies/Related-Party-Transaction.pdf

The Company has complied with all applicable rules and regulations prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of

India (SEBI), stock exchanges (BSE), or any other statutory authority relating to the capital markets. No penalties or

strictures have been imposed on the Company in the last 3 years.

l

l

l

l

l

l

th

kk@pocl.co.in
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© Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism

(d) Disclosure in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and

Redressal) Act 2013

(e) Code of conduct for prevention of insider trading

(f) Commodity price risk/Foreign exchange risk and Hedging activities.

The Company has established a Whistle Blower Policy/ Vigil Mechanism to provide an avenue to raise concerns. The

mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who avail of it, to which employees

of the Company can raise their concerns relating to fraud, malpractice or any other activity or event which is against

the interest of the Company. The existence of the mechanism was appropriately communicated within the

organization. No personnel of the Company have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The said policy has

been posted on the Company’s website at the following link: http://pocl.co.in/policies/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of Insider Trading (Insider Trading Code) in accordance

with the requirements of SEBI (Prohibition of insider trading) Regulations, 2015 and the same is available in the

website of the Company at http://pocl.co.in/policies/code-of-conduct-for-prevention-of-insider-trading.pdf.

The insider Trading code which is applicable to all directors and designated employees lays down guidelines and

procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing in the securities of the Company and non-

consequences of violation. Mr. K. Kumaravel, Company Secretary was appointed as the Compliance Officer by the

Board to ensure compliance and effective implementation of the Insider Trading Code.

Pursuant to para 10(1) of Para C of Schedule V to the SEBI Listing Regulations, details of complaints received and

disposed off during the year is as follows:

Number of complaints during the year – Nil

Number of complaints disposed off during the year – N.A

Number of complaints pending at the end of the year – N.A

Prices of the Company's finished goods are linked to international bench mark i.e LME and are strongly

influenced by global economic conditions and global demand supply for the products. Volatility in commodity

prices and demand may adversely affect our earnings, cash flow and reserves

We consider exposure to commodity price fluctuations to be an integral part of company's business

and its usual policy is to sell its products at monthly average prices linked with London Metal Exchange (LME).

However, to minimise price risk involved in procurement of major raw materials for the manufacture of finished

goods and to achieve monthly average hedging is done. In exceptional circumstances, we may enter into strategic

hedging with prior approval of the Company Management. The Company monitors the commodity markets

closely to determine the effect of price fluctuations on earnings.

Movement in functional currency of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the

Company's revenue. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company's cost of imports and

cost of borrowings. Our assets, earnings and cash flows are influenced by fluctuation in those foreign currencies,

mainly US Dollars.

We have developed a module for forex management to monitor, measure and hedge currency risk

liabilities. The Treasury team reviews our forex-related matters periodically and suggests necessary courses of

action as may be needed by businesses from time to time and within the overall framework of our forex policy

taking into account the natural hedging due to Export. The Company strives to achieve asset liability offset of

foreign currency exposures and only the net position is hedged. The Company uses forward exchange contracts

to hedge the effects of movements in exchange rates on foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities. The

sources of foreign exchange risk are outstanding amounts payable for imported raw materials, capital goods and

other supplies as well as financing transactions denominated in foreign currencies. The hedge mechanisms are

reviewed periodically to ensure that the risk from fluctuating currency exchange rates is appropriately managed.

l

l

l

(I) Fluctuation in commodity prices

Impact:

Mitigation:

(ii) Currency Exchange rate Fluctuation

Impact:

Mitigation:
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Exposure to Commodity and Commodity risks faced be the company during the year 2019-2020

Type of Service Amount ( In Lakhs)

Total 18.16

A. Total Exposure to commodities: 2,26,000 lakhs

B. Exposure to various commodities:

- Commodity means a commodity whose price is fixed by an international benchmark and having material effect on
the financial statements

- Exposure for Lead and Zinc includes Purchases and Sales and are reported without netting off and therefore the
natural hedge positions to the tune of 62% for Lead are not reported in the above table.

Statutory Audit fees 10.00

Taxation fee 1.00

GST Audit 1.75

Limited Review 0.75

Other Certifications* 4.66

s

s

* Includes merger certification fee of .1.00 Lakhs

(g) Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice.

(h) Details of non-acceptance of recommendation of any Committee by the Board.

(I) Fees paid to Statutory Auditors on a consolidated basis

(j) Discretionary Requirements

(k) Compliance

The Company has received a certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice stating that none of the Directors on

the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of

Companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The certificate from the

Company Secretary in Practice is annexed to this report.

The Board has accepted the recommendations of all the Committees of the Board during the financial year 2019-20.

During the year the Company has paid 18.16 Lakhs to the Statutory Auditors for all services received on a

consolidated basis.

The Company has adopted the discretionary requirements as specified in Part E of Schedule II to the extent of the

Unmodified audit opinions/reporting.

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements and with the requirements of Corporate

Governance report given under sub-paras (2) to (10) of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The quarterly compliance report has been submitted to the stock exchanges where the Company’s equity shares are

listed in the requisite format duly signed by the Company Secretary. Pursuant to Schedule V of SEBI(Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 . The Chartered Accountant’s Certificate regarding

compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed to this report.

s

Domestic Market International Market

OTC        Exchange OTC      Exchange

% of such exposure hedged through commodity
derivatives

Total

Commodity
Name

Exposure
in Amount
( in Lakhs)s

Units
Exposure in

Quantity
terms

Lead 2,19,971 MT 1,49,561 - - - 22.90 22.90

Zinc 2,300 MT 1,196 - - - 100.00 100.00
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(l) Compliance with Governance Framework

(m) Risk Management

(o) Issue of Securities

(p) Unclaimed Suspense account

(q) Transfer of Unpaid/ Unclaimed Amounts and Shares to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

The company has complied with all mandatory requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of

sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year the Company has allotted 2,36,397 shares to the Shareholders of Meloy Metals Private Ltd (MMPL)

pursuant to the approval of the merger of Meloy Metals Private Limited with our Company as per the order of the

National Company Law Tribunal. Chennai Bench.

The Company does not have any shares in the Unclaimed Suspense account.

Pursuant to the provisions of sec 124(5) of the Act, ifthe Dividend transferred to the unpaid dividend account of the

company, remains unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer then such unclaimed

or unpaid dividend shall be transferred by the company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), a fund

established under subsection (1) of section 125 of the Act. Accordingly, the Company has credited 1.85 lakhs

pertaining to the financial year2011-12 to the InvestorEducation and ProtectionFund (IEPF)during theyear 2019-20.

In terms of sec 124(6) of the Act read with rule 6 of the Investor Education and Protection Fund (Accounting, Audit,

Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016,(as amended from time to time) the shares on which dividend has not been paid or

claimed by a shareholder for a period of 7 consecutive years or more shall be credited to the demat account of the

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) Authority within a period of 30 days of such shares becoming due to

be so transferred. Accordingly, the Company has transferred 4,495 equity shares of 10/- each, pertaining to the year

2011-12, to the credit of IEPF Authority during the year 2019-20.

Upon the transfer of such shares, all benefits like Dividend, Bonus etc. if any, accruing on such shares shall also be

credited to such demat account and the voting rights on such shares shall remain frozen till the rightful owner claims

the shares.

The members who have a claim on Unclaimed Dividend/ Shares may claim the same from IEPF by submitting an

online application in the prescribed Form No. IEPF-5 available on the website www.iepf.gov.in and sending a physical

copy of the same, duly signed , to the company alongwith requisite documents as mentioned in Form IEPF-5.

No claims shall lie against the company in respect of the Unclaimed Dividend/Shares so transferred.

The Company sends periodical communication to the concerned Shareholders to claim their Dividends in order to

avoid transfer of Dividends/ Shares to IEPF authority. Notices in this regard are also published in the newspapers and

the details of unclaimed dividends by shareholders are uploaded on the website of the company athttp://pocl.co.in/

transfer-of-shares/.

s

Date : 13 August 2020

Place : Chennai Executive Chairman Managing Director

(DIN: 00232223) (DIN: 01543967)

th
Anil Kumar Bansal Ashish Bansal

During the year, the risk assessment parameters were reviewed and modified, wherever needed. The audit committee

reviewed the elements of risk and the steps taken to mitigate the risks. In the opinion of the Board, there are no major

elements of risk which has the potential of threatening the existence of the Company. The Risk Management Policy

can be reviewed in the website of the company at www.pocl.in/policies.

(n) Details of Utilisation of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutional Placement

During the year under review, the company has not raised any money from public issue, rights issue or any

preferential issue except for the issue of securities mentioned below.

s
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Members of Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

Management's Responsibility

Auditor's Responsibility

Opinion

Restriction on use

L Mukundan and Associates

L Mukundan

1. We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

(“the Company”), for the year ended on 31st March, 2020, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of

Regulation 46(2), and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('Listing Regulations')

2. The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsibility of the Company's management. This

responsibility includes the designing, implementing and maintaining operating effectiveness of internal control to

ensure compliance with the conditions of corporate governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

3. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, our responsibility is to express a reasonable assurance in the

form of an opinion as to whether the Company has complied with the conditions of corporate governance as stated in

paragraph 1 above. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by

the Company for ensuring the compliance with the conditions of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an

expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. We have examined the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the applicable Generally Accepted

Auditing Standards in India, the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI'), and Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by

the ICAI which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

5. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and

Related Services Engagements.

6. Based on the procedures performed by us and to the best of our information and according to the explanations provided

to us, in our opinion, the Company has complied, in all material respects, with the conditions of corporate governance as

stipulated in the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March 2020.

7. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

8. This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid regulations and may not be suitable for

any other purpose.

For

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.010283S

Place : Chennai
Date : 29.06.2020 Partner

Membership No: 204372
UDIN:20204372AAAACW3156

DECLARATION PURSUANT TO CLAUSE D OF SCHEDULE V TO SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited
Ashish Bansal

I, Ashish Bansal, Managing Director of Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited, declare that all the members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the POCL Code of Conduct for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

Date : 13 August 2020 For
Place : Chennai

Managing Director
DIN: 01543967

th

POCL
®
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors
[Pursuant to Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause (10) (i) of Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

To
The Members,
Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited
CIN: L24294TN1995PLC030586
4 Floor, KRM Centre
No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet
Chennai-600 031

We have examined the relevant registers, records, minute books, forms, returns declarations/disclosures received from
the Directors and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives of Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited (CIN:
L24294TN1995PLC030586) (hereinafter called the company), having its Registered Office at 4 Floor, KRM Centre, No.
2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai-600 031, Tamil Nadu, India (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) for the
purpose of issue of this certificate pursuant to regulation 34(3) read with para C(10)(i) of Schedule V of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended by
Notification No. SEBI/LAD-NRO/GN/2018/10 dated May 9, 2018 issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and based on such examination/verifications including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as well as information and explanations furnished to us by
the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors as stated below on the Board of the Company
during the financial year 2019-20 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
authority.

th

th

1 00232223 Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman and Whole-Time Director

2 00232708 Rajendraprasad Bansal Whole-Time Director

3 01543967 Ashish Bansal Managing Director

4 00043431 Anil Kumar Sachdev Independent Director

5 02773030 Shoba Ramakrishnan Independent Director

6 01509307 Guruvayur Parameswaran Independent Director

Venkateswaran

7 06431219 Vijay Anand Independent Director

8 07999117 Ramasubramani* Independent Director

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these, based on our verification. We further
state that this certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Place : Chennai
Date : 13 August 2020 Partner

FCS 6447; CP 7039
UDIN: F006447B000574971

SN DIN Name Designation

For KSM Associates, Company Secretaries

Krishna Sharan Mishra

#

th

# resigned with effect from 25.01.2020
* appointed with effect from 13.03.2020
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CEO & CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 33(2) OF
SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Board of Directors
Pondy Oxides and Chemicals Limited

We, the undersigned, hereby certify the following-

1. We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2020 and that to

the best of our knowledge and belief;

a. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements

that might be misleading;

b. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with

existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

2. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year are fraudulent,

illegal or violative of the Company's Code of Conduct.

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining the internal controls for financial reporting and that we have

evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting, and we have

not noticed any deficiency in the design of operation of internal controls, or of which we are aware that needs to be

rectified or informed to the auditors and the Audit Committee.

4. During the year it was disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

a. There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting;

b. No significant changes in accounting policies were made during the year that require disclosure in the notes to

the financial statements; and

c. No instances of significant fraud and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a

significant role in the Company's internal control system over financial reporting, has come to our notice.

Place : Chennai

Date : June 29, 2020 Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal Usha Sankar

POCL
®
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Emphasis of Matter

Key Audit Matters

Information Other than the Standalone Financials Statements and Auditor's Report thereon (Other Information)

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Pondy Oxides And Chemicals Limited (“the Company”), which

comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2020, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive

Income), the statement of cash flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone

financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') in the manner so required and

give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian

Accounting Standards ('Ind AS') specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the

Company as at 31 March 2020, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash

flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are

relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that

the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We draw attention to Note 2B to the financial statements, which explain the uncertainties and the impact of COVID-19

pandemic situation on the Company's financial results as assessed by the management.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Based on the examination of books of account and explanations provided to us, we are of the opinion that there are no

materially significant key audit matters that requires disclosure in this report.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexure to Board's Report,

Corporate Governance and Corporate Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other Information identified above

when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

st



When we read the Directors' Report to the Shareholders, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we

are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the

preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs(financial

position), profit or loss(financial performance), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the

accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)specified under

section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection

and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for

ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the

financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a

going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of

accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

That Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with

Standards of Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the

override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of The Act, we are also responsible for explaining our

opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

l

l

l

l
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are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as

a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and

whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We

describe these matters if they are materially significant in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public

disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh

the public interest benefits of such communication.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A, a statement

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief

were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 133

of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2020 taken on record by

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being appointed as a

director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information

and according to the explanations given to us:

l

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

st

st
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I. The Company does not have any materially significant pending litigations which would impact its

financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any

material foreseeable losses.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company

(h) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16) of the Act;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid or provided by

the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

For

Firm Registration No: 010283S

Place : Chennai LMukundan
Date : 29.06.2020

Membership No. 204372
UDIN: 20204372AAAACW3156

L Mukundan and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Partner

POCL
®
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ANNEXURE – A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Statement of matters specified in Para 3 & 4 of the order referred to in sub-section (11) of 143.

The annexure referred to in Para 2 under the heading of “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our

report to the members of PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED of even date:

1. In respect of company's fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and

situation of fixed assets.

b) As per the information and explanation given to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the

Company at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our

opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the

nature of its assets. No material discrepancies as compared to book records were noticed on such verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us and based on the

examination of the registered conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, comprising all

the immovable properties of land, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

Immovable properties of freehold land disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statement whose title deeds

have been pledged as security for loans, are held in the name of the Company. In respect of immovable

properties of land that have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed asset in the financial statements, the

lease agreements are in the name of the Company, where the Company is the lessee in the agreement.

2. The inventories have been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of

such verification is reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the company and nature of its business. No

material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification of inventories as compared to the book records.

3. During the year, the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms or other

parties covered in the Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the

provisions of clauses (iii) (a),(b) &(c) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable.

4. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the

provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year from the public, within the meaning of Section 73 to

76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and Rules framed there under and does not have any unclaimed

deposits as at March 31, 2020 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to

the Company.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by

the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub Section (1) of section 148 of the

Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed accounts and records have been

made and maintained. We have however not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to

determine whether they are accurate or complete.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,

Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax,

Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,

Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other

material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31st March, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the

date they became payable.
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8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and financial institutions. The Company has not taken any loan or

borrowing from government and has not issued any debentures during the year under audit.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans availed by the

Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were obtained. The Company has not raised monies

by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year

10. Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the financial

statements, to the best of our knowledge and belief and as per the information and explanations given to us by the

Management, and the representations obtained from the management, no material fraud by the Company and no

fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has paid or provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite

approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under Clause 3 paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not

applicable to the company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records and

approvals of the Audit Committee of the Company, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with

sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details of such transactions have been disclosed in the

financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly

convertible debentures during the year and hence, reporting under Clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to

the Company. However based on the merger scheme, and upon NCLT approval, the Company has allotted

2,36,397 fully paid up Equity shares of 10/- each to the shareholders of Meloy Metals Private Limited during the

year under audit.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its

directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under

section 45-IAof the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

Firm Registration No: 010283S

Place : Chennai L Mukundan
Date : 29.06.2020
Membership No. 204372 UDIN: 20204372AAAACW3156

R

For L.Mukundan and Associates

Chartered Accountants

Partner

POCL
®
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report to

the members of PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 (“the Act”)

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors' Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the

internal control over financial reporting (IFCoFR) criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively

for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding

of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,

and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company based

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on

Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal

financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial

reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on

the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on

the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting

A Company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial

reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted

accounting principles. ACompany's IFCoFR includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of

records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the

Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of

the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Opinion

For L Mukundan and Associates

Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of

controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation

of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting and

such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting issued by the

ICAI.

Firm Registration No: 010283S

Place : Chennai LMukundan

Date : 29.06.2020

Membership No. 204372

UDIN: 20204372AAAACW3156

Chartered Accountants

Partner

POCL
®
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accountants
(FRN No.010283S)

For M/s. L. Mukundan and Associates

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

For and on behalf of the board

Anil Kumar Bansal
Chairman
DIN: 00232223

Usha Sankar
Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal

Managing Director

DIN: 01543967

K.Kumaravel
GM Finance & Company Secretary

Balance Sheet as at March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019NotesASSETS

Non-current assets

Total non-current assets 6,623.26 3,943.69
Current assets

Total current assets 15,300.74 24,202.93

Total Assets 21,924.00 28,146.62

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

Total equity 15,044.98 13,040.03
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities 750.97 430.29
Current liabilities

Total current liabilities 6,128.05 14,676.30

Total liabilities 6,879.02 15,106.59

Total Equity and Liabilities 21,924.00 28,146.62

(a) Property, plant and equipment 5 4,966.14 3,231.67
(b) Capital work in progress 5 188.33 44.16
(c) Investment property 6 - 185.99
(d) Goodwill 7 965.46 -
(e) Intangible assets 5 124.10 30.79
(f) Intangible assets under development 5 - 44.32
(g) Financial assets

(i)  Investments 8 9.56 14.40
(ii) Other financial assets 9 106.13 93.36

(h) Deferred Tax Asset (net) 10 11.47 58.66
(i)  Other non-current assets 11 252.07 240.34

(a) Inventories 12 7,050.44 11,017.58
(b) Financial assets

(i)   Trade receivables 13 5,741.00 8,853.77
(ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 14 615.63 105.85
(iii) Bank balances other than above 15 322.11 298.51
(iv) Other financial assets 16 - 17.83

(c) Other current assets 17 1,571.56 3,909.39

(a) Equity share capital 18 581.24 557.60
(b) Other equity 19 14,463.74 12,482.43

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 20 684.30 351.94

(b) Provisions 21 56.29 62.41
(c) Other liabilities 22 10.38 15.94

(a) Financial liabilities
(I) Borrowings 23 4,443.61 13,629.54
(ii) Trade payables

- Dues to Micro and Small enterprises 24 8.07 16.14

- Dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises 24 463.34 390.79

(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 817.55 251.98

(b) Provisions 26 77.34 8.14
(c) Other current liabilities 27 318.14 379.71
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accountants

(FRN No.010283S)

For M/s. L. Mukundan and Associates

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

For and on behalf of the board

Anil Kumar Bansal

Chairman

DIN: 00232223

Usha Sankar

Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal

Managing Director

DIN: 01543967

K.Kumaravel

GM Finance & Company Secretary

Continuing Operations

(a) Revenue from operations 28 121,987.10 104,888.55

(b) Other income 29 354.28 398.93

(a) Cost of materials consumed 30 107,381.96 90,033.23

(b) Purchases of Stock in Trade 31 2,797.33 4,460.03

(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods and WIP 32 2,708.45 (1,049.54)

(d) Employee Benefits Expense 33 1,959.71 1,504.83

(e) Finance costs 34 994.56 1,122.34

(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 35 786.67 519.26

(g) Other expenses 36 3,589.92 3,509.52

Exceptional items - -

2,122.78 5,187.81

Tax expense 37

(a) Current tax 481.64 1,822.47

(b) Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 6.58 (7.49)

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 12.81 6.34

Income tax (charge)/ credit relating to these items (3.22) (2.21)

38

Basic earnings per share 29.28 60.49

Diluted earnings per share 29.28 60.49

A Income

Total income 122,341.38 105,287.48

B Expenses

Total expenses 120,218.60 100,099.67

C Profit before exceptional items and tax 2,122.78 5,187.81

D Profit before tax from continuing operations

Profit for the year 1,634.56 3,372.83

E Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 9.59 4.13

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,644.15 3,376.96

Earnings per share

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2020

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2019Notes
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accountants

(FRN No.010283S)

For M/s. L. Mukundan and AssociatesFor and on behalf of the board

Anil Kumar Bansal

Chairman

DIN: 00232223

Usha Sankar

Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal

Managing Director

DIN: 01543967

K.Kumaravel

GM Finance & Company Secretary

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net cash from operating activities (A) 13,529.68 2,332.58
Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities (B) (3,540.12) (776.30)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 509.78 (15.49)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 615.63 105.85
Notes:

615.63 105.85

Profit before income tax 2,122.78 5,187.81
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortisation expense 786.67 519.26
(Profit)/ loss on sale of fixed asset 36.63 (6.55)
(Increase)/ decrease in fair value of investments 4.84 1.50
Interest income (14.23) (65.04)
Dividend income (0.11) (0.05)
Finance costs 994.56 1,122.34

Operating Profit before working capital changes 3,931.14 6,759.27

Change in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/ decrease in Other financial assets 5.06 270.02
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 3,967.14 (1,310.94)
(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables 3,112.77 265.70
(Increase)/ decrease in Other assets 2,324.83 (1,850.21)
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions and other liabilities 511.99 45.98
Increase/ (decrease) in trade payables 64.48 67.87

Cash generated from operations 13,917.41 4,247.69
Less : Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (387.73) (1,915.11)

Purchase of PPE (including changes in CWIP) (3,596.39) (664.45)
Sale proceeds of PPE 52.53 52.63
(Investments in)/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks (23.60) (224.80)

Dividend received 0.11 0.05
Interest received 27.23 60.27

Proceeds from issue of equity share capital (net of share application money) 838.29 -
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) long term borrowings 332.36 (411.15)
Proceeds from/ (repayment of) short term borrowings (9,185.93) 163.32
Finance costs (994.56) (1,122.28)
Dividend paid (469.94) (201.66)

(9,479.78) (1,571.77)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 105.85 121.34

1. Theabovecash flowstatementhasbeenpreparedunder indirect methodprescribed in Ind AS7 "CashFlowStatements".
2. Components of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 607.96 103.58
- in EEFC Account 5.44 0.44

Cash on hand 2.23 1.83

Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2020

For the Year Ended
March 31, 2019

Particulars

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accountants

(FRN No.010283S)

For M/s. L. Mukundan and AssociatesFor and on behalf of the board

Anil Kumar Bansal

Chairman

DIN: 00232223

Usha Sankar

Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal

Managing Director

DIN: 01543967

K.Kumaravel

GM Finance & Company Secretary

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31,2020

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(A) Equity Share Capital

(B) Other Equity

Balance at the beginning of April 01, 2019 557.60

Addition in equity share capital on account of business combination 23.64

Balance at the end of March 31, 2020 581.24

Particulars
General
Reserve

Securities
Premium

Other
comprehensive

income

Retained
Earnings

Total

Balance as at April 01,2019 1,035.92 277.87 - 11,168.64 12,482.43

Additions/ (deductions) during the year 160.00 814.65 9.59 (627.90) 356.33

Total Comprehensive Income

for the year - - (9.59) 1,634.56 1,624.98

Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,195.92 1,092.52 - 12,175.30 14,463.74

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020
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Significant Accounting Policies for the year ended March 31, 2020

1 Corporate Information

2 Basis of preparation of financial statements

Statement of compliance

Use of estimates

Functional and presentation currency

2A Critical accounting estimates and management judgments

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE), Intangible Assets and Investment Properties

Current tax

Deferred Tax Assets

POCL is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company’s Equity shares are
listed at the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). The registered office of the company is situated at KRM Centre, 4th
Floor, #2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai, Tamilnadu - 600031.

The Principle Activities of the company are converting Lead Scraps of various forms into Lead Metal and Alloys. The
company carries out smelting of Lead Battery Scrap to produce secondary lead metal which is further transformed
into Pure lead and Specific Lead Alloys. Further company also manufactures Zinc metal and Zinc Oxide.

The Company’s products are exported to numerous international customers mainly but not limited to the Asian region
like Japan, South Korea, Thailand and Middle – East. Over the years POCL has built a unmatched brand image within
the lead sector for its quality, high level of efficiency, reliability, technical support and service. POCL also supply its
products to leading battery manufacturers in India.

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the
historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
values, the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future
periods.

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency. All
financial information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals). The financial
statements are approved for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on June 29, 2020.

In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management of the Company is required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements used in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment Properties are assessed by
the technical team at each reporting date by taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset,
the operating condition of the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the
management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of depreciation/amortisation. Also,
management judgement is exercised for classifying the asset as investment properties or vice versa.

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws and management’s
judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and interpretations of relevant provisions of law.

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at each reporting date to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/ recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Fair value

Impairment of Trade Receivables

Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE/ Intangible Assets/ Investment Properties)

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term employee benefits

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Provisions and contingencies

2B Note on COVID-19

3 Significant Accounting Policies

a) Current versus non-current classification

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments where active market
quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques, management makes maximum use of market inputs
and uses estimates and assumptions that are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market
participants would use in pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may vary from the actual
prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

The impairment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The assumptions, selection of inputs for calculation of impairment are based on management judgement considering
the past history, market conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

The impairment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of recoverable amount of such
assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable amount are based on management judgement
considering the timing of future cash flows, discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present value of such obligation
are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that
may differ from actual developments in future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this obligation is highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to
determine its fair value The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at
a future date may therefore vary from the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

In view of the lockdown across the country due to the outbreak of COVID pandemic, operations in many of the
Company’s locations (manufacturing, warehouses, offices, etc.) are scaled down or shut down in compliance with the
directives/orders issued by the local Panchayat/Municipal Corporation/State/Central Government authorities.

As per management’s current assessment, no significant impact on carrying amounts of inventories, goodwill,
intangible assets, trade receivables, investments and other financial assets is expected, and management will
continue to monitor changes in future economic conditions. The eventual outcome of the impact of the global health
pandemic may be different from those estimated as on the date of approval of these Standalone Financial Statements.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

POCL
®
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All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and

cash equivalents.

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the

presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i) In the principal market for the asset or liability;

ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when

pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non - financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate

economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best use or by selling it to another market participant

that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data

are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized

within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company

determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization

(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each

reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and procedures for both

recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are involved, wherever necessary with

the approval of Company’s board of directors. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,

independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the

basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as

explained above. The component wise fair value measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

b) Fair value measurement
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c) Revenue Recognition

Sale of goods

Sale of services

Export entitlements

Interest Income

Dividend income

Rental income

d) Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

Presentation

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of manufactured goods, traded goods and related

services.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and

the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue on sale of

goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of ownership is transferred to the buyer, which generally

coincides with the despatch of the goods or as per the inco-terms agreed with the customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account

contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods after deducting discounts,

volume rebates and applicable taxes on sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption.

Income from sale of services is recognised when the services are rendered as per the terms of the agreement

and when no significant uncertainty as to its determination or realisation exists.

In respect of the exports made by the Company, the related export entitlements from Government authorities

are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the right to receive the incentives/ entitlements as per

the terms of the scheme is established and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate

collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts

the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter

period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a

financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows

by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call

and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend income is recognized when the company’s right to receive dividend is established by the reporting

date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease, if

the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and

equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts

of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately

based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

Property, plant and equipment acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the

acquisition date.
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Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet date, are

disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the tangible assets not

ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work in progress.

All material/ significant components have been identified and have been accounted separately. The useful life

of such component are analysed independently and wherever components are having different useful life other

than plant they are part of, useful life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the

item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its

cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit

and loss as incurred.

Machinery spares/ insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed assets and their

issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to revenue. Other

spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference

between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of

profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life on a written

down value method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for

cost, less 5% being its residual value.

Depreciation is provided on written down value method, over the useful lives specified in Schedule II to the

Companies Act, 2013, except in respect of certain assets, where useful life estimated based on internal

assessment and/or independent technical evaluation carried out by external valuer, past trends and differs

from the useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013.

Depreciation for PPE on additions is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date of such additions. For deletion/

disposals, the depreciation is calculated on pro-rata basis up to the date on which such assets have been

discarded/ sold. Additions to fixed assets, costing 5000 each or less are fully depreciated retaining its residual

value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at

each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of a separately

acquired intangible asset comprises (a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable

purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates; and (b) any directly attributable cost of preparing

the asset for its intended use.Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Goodwill is initially recognised based on the accounting policy for business combinations and is tested for

impairment annually.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives

are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that

the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible

asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Component Cost

Derecognition

e) Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

f) Intangible assets

Useful life and amortisation of intangible assets

R
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually. The

assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be

supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Subsequent costs are capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific

asset to which it relates. All other expenditures, including expenditure on internally-generated intangibles, are

recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated

amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired

separately.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss

unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Expenditure on intangible assets eligible for capitalisation are carried as Intangible assets under development

where such assets are not yet ready for their intended use.

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including property

under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,

investment properties are measured in accordance with Ind AS 16 - Property, plant and equipments requirements

for cost model. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction

projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be

replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair

andmaintenancecosts are recognised in thestatement ofprofit and lossas incurred.

Company depreciates investment property as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies

Act, 2013.

Though the Company measures investment property using the cost-based measurement, the fair value of

investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation

applying a valuation model. External valuers are involved, wherever necessary with the approval of

Company’s board of directors. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and

whether professional standards are maintained.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition

of the property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the

asset) is included in the statementof profit and loss in theperiod in which theproperty isderecognised.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other

costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Costs are determined on

weighted average method as follows:

(i) At purchase cost

including other cost incurred in bringing materials/consumables to their present location and condition.

(ii) W At material cost, conversion costs and appropriate share of

production overheads

(iii) At material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate share of production overheads.

Subsequent cost and measurement

Intangible assets under development

g) Investment property

h) Inventories

Raw materials, stock acquired for trading, packing materials and consumables:

ork-in-process and intermediates:

Finished goods:
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Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of

completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes a party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial assets not recorded at

fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset are

also added to the cost of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of

assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are

recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their contractual

cash flow characteristics and the entity’s business model of managing them.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company classifies a debt instrument as at amortised cost, if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows; and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of

Principal and Interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value.

Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company

recognizes finance income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and

loss statement. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is

reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported

as interest income using the EIR method.

The Company classifies all debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized

cost or as FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.

i) Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

Debt instrument at FVTPL

l

l

l

l
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Debt instruments included within the FVTPLcategory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in

the profit and loss.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for

trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes an irrevocable election of classifying the equity

instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI, without any recycling of

the amounts from OCI to profit and loss, even on sale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized

in the profit and loss.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose contractual terms give rise to

cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured as detailed below depending on the

business model:

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans given to employees  and  others,  deposits,

interest receivable, unbilled revenue and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOCI Equity investments  in companies  other than subsidiaries and associates if an

option exercised at the time of initial recognition.

FVTPL Other investments  in  equity instruments, mutual   funds,  forward   exchange

contracts (to the extent not designated as a hedging instrument).

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to

pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’

arrangement~ and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-

through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.

When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor

transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The

transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations

that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower

of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could

be required to repay.

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and

recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt

securities, deposits, receivables and bank balance.

Equity investments

Classification Name of the financial asset

Derecognition

Impairment of financial assets

l

l
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b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

c) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from

transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on

Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it

recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date,

right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that

whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not

increased significantly, 12 months ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has

increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves

such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to

recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a

financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the

contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the

original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company considers all contractual terms of the financial

instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial

instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the

contractual terms.

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of

profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance

sheet presentation of ECLfor various financial instruments is described below:

ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset

meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying

amount.

Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value,

impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is presented as

‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines financial instruments on the

basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable

significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

l

l

l

l

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease

receivables:

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI:
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For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at each reporting date. Other

financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the

impairment testing is done on the following basis:

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL and as at amortised
cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they
are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit and loss.

Name of the financial asset

Trade Receivables

Other financial assets

Impairment Testing Methodology

Expected Credit Loss model (ECL) is applied. The ECL over

lifetime of the assets are estimated by using a provision matrix

which is based on historical loss rates reflecting current

conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions which are

grouped on the basis of similar credit characteristics such as

nature of industry, customer segment, past due status and

other factors that are relevant to estimate the expected cash loss

from these assets.

When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL

is used to provide for impairment loss. When there is significant

change in credit risk since initial recognition, the impairment is

measured based on probability of default over the life time. If, in a

subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such

that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since

initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising

impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.
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Classification Name of the financial liability

Amortised cost Borrowings, Trade payables, Interest accrued, Unclaimed / Disputed dividends,
Security deposits and other financial liabilities not for trading.

FVTPL

Loans and borrowings

Financial guarantee contracts

Derivative financial instruments

(a) Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Reclassification of financial assets

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their
fair values and, if not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently measured at higher of (i)
The amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 –

Financial Instruments and (ii) The amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of
income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind AS 18 – Revenue.

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward and options
contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign currency exposures. The counterparty
for these contracts is generally a bank.

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they
may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not
designated a hedge, or is so designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or
financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are
recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
these derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are
included in other income. Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current assets / current liabilities if
they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12 months after the Balance Sheet
date.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the
business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The
Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A
change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains,
losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Foreign exchange Forward contracts being derivative contracts do not qualify
for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109 and other financial liabilities held for
trading.
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The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

1 Amortised cost FVTPL F a i r v a l u e i s m e a s u r e d a t
reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortized cost and
fair value is recognised in P&L.

2 FVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date
becomes its new gross carrying amount.
EIR is calculated based on the new
gross carrying amount.

3 Amortised cost FVTOCI F a i r v a l u e i s m e a s u r e d a t
reclassification date. Difference
between previous amortised cost and
fair value is recognised in OCI. No
change in EIR due to reclassification.

4 FVTOCI Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date
becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative
gain or loss in OCI is adjusted against
fair value. Consequently, the asset is
measured as if it had always been
measured at amortised cost.

5 FVTPL FVTOCI Fair value at reclassification date
becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.

6 FVTOCI FVTPL Assets continue to be measured at fair
value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified to P&Lat the reclassification
date.

S.No Original classification Revised classification Accounting treatment

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet, if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot
rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, the
Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with foreign currency
fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract is amortized
as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of monetary items which are covered by forward
exchange contract, the difference between the yearend rate and rate on the date of the contract is

j) Foreign currency transactions and translations

Transactions and balances
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recognized as exchange difference. Any profit or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange
contract is recognized as income or expense for that year.

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate method, amortisation of
ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use. The Company determines the amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by
applying capitalisation rate to the expenditure incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined
based on the weighted average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of the
qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the period does not
exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other borrowings costs are expensed
in the period in which they occur.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all the attached conditions are complied with.

In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a systematic basis over the period for which it
is intended to compensate an expense and is disclosed under “Other operating revenue” or netted off
against corresponding expenses wherever appropriate. Receivables of such grants are shown under
“Other Financial Assets”. Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and
when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same. Receivables of such benefits are shown under “Other
Financial Assets”.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall be presented in the
balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant set up as deferred income is
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in
the form of adjustment to future tax liability, is recognised as an asset viz. MAT Credit Entitlement, to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal Income tax and it is highly probable
that future economic benefits associated with it will flow to the Company during the specified period. The
Company reviews the “MAT Credit Entitlement” at each Balance Sheet date and writes down the
carrying amount of the same to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the
Company will pay normal Income tax during the specified period.

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments clarifies that while determinating the taxable profit (or loss), tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments under Ind AS 12, companies need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority
accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments.

k) Borrowing Costs

l) Government grants

m) Taxes

Current income tax
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Deferred tax

n) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising from carry forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect
is included in the accounting for the business combination

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is rendered at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the
contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Employee Benfits in connection with Plan amendments, curtailments and settlements, to use updated
assumptions to determine current service cost to be updated and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past
service cost or gain or loss on settlement.
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Compensated absences

Other long term employee benefits

o) Leases

p) Impairment of non financial assets

q) Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset

Provisions

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating
in nature. The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method on the
additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated
at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the
period in which the absences occur.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by
the employees up to the reporting date.

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is
classified as a finance lease. All other leases are operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are
apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are
capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty
that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the
shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Effective April 1, 2019, the company adopted Ind AS 116, Lease and applied the standard to all lease
contracts existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method . Consequently, the company
recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the ROU asset at its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the
commencement date of the lease, but discounted at the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies included as part of our
Annual Report for year ended March 31, 2019. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit of the
company.

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable
amount.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material, using pre-tax rates that
reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an increase in the provisions due to the
passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates
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Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of money is doubtful in the
judgement of the management.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the
company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent
liabilities are disclosed separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for evaluation of contingent
liabilities only when converted into demand.

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief description of the nature
of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where practicable, an estimate of their
financial effect.

Contingent assets are disclosed but not recognised in the financial statements.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances
with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into cash,
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects
of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity’s cash management, bank overdrafts are
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash flow statement.

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average number of equity shares that could have
been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity
shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and
potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting method as at the date of the
acquisition, which is the date at which control is transferred to the Company.

The consideration transferred in the acquisition and the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are recognised at fair values on their acquisition date. Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the
excess of aggregate consideration transferred over the net identifiable assets and liabilities. Transaction
costs are recognised in profit & loss account.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent assets

r) Cash and cash equivalents

s) Cash Flow Statement

t) Earnings per share

u) Business Combination
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020

4 Business Combination and acquisition

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

Assets

Liabilities

Total identifiable net assets at fair value (127.17)

Purchase consideration transferred 838.29

(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

During the year, the Company has acquired Meloy Metals Private Limited, a Private Company specializing in the
manufacture of lead metal and lead alloys vide NCLT Chennai order dated 21 February 2020. The NCLT had
approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Meloy Metals Private Limited (transferor Company) with our Company
with effect from April 1, 2019 , the appointed date.

Based on the NCLT approval the Company has allotted 2,36,397 fully paid up Equity shares of 10/- each to the
shareholders of Meloy Metals Private Limited and the same has been credited to the Share capital account of the
Company.

As per the Scheme of Amalgamation all assets and liabilities of Meloy Metals Private Limited stand transferred to the
Company with effect from the appointed date and has been recorded at Fair market value in the books of the
Company.

The Company is in the process of transferring the title of the assets and liabilities received under the Scheme, as on
the reporting date.

The amalgamation has been accounted in the books of accounts in compliance with the Indian Accounting Standard
103 on Business Combinations and other Indian Accounting Standards as applicable.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities as on the date of acquisition were:

Property, Plant & Equipment 1,457.57

PPE under development 203.21

Cash & Cash equivalents 76.66

Trade Receivables 158.45

Inventories 354.76

Loans & Advances 7.05

Other Current Assets 215.70

Trade Payables 38.32

Long Term Borrowings 1,631.94

Short Term Borrowings 599.34

Short Term provision 1.60

Deferred tax liability 37.39

Other Current Liabilities 291.98

Goodwill arising on acquisition 965.46

Total Expenditure on business combination 32.08

As per the Scheme of amalgamation the members of Meloy Metals Private Limited, whose name stood in the register
of members as on 13th March 2020, has received 102 equity shares of 10/- each fully paid for every 100 shares of

100/- each held by him in Meloy Metals Private Limited.

The effective date of the scheme of amalgamation is 02nd March 2020, being the date on which the certified true copy
of the NCLT order was filed with the Registrar of Companies.

st

R

R
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

6 Investment Property

- 185.99

7 Goodwill

965.46 -

8 Non-current investments

9.56 14.40

Total non-current investments

9 Other non-current financial assets

106.13 93.36

10 Deferred Tax Asset / (Liability) - Net

Deferred Tax Asset

11.47 58.66

11 Other non-current assets

252.07 240.34

Land and buildings* - 185.99

* Transferred to Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisitions through business combination [refer Note 4] 965.46 -

Investments in companies other than subsidiaries, associates and joint

ventures at FVTPL

I. Investments in Equity Instruments (Quoted)

2,000 equity shares (previous year 2,000) of 10 each in

Amararaja Batteries Ltd, fully paid 9.56 14.40

Aggregate amount of quoted investments 9.56 14.40

Aggregate market value of quoted investments 9.56 14.40

Security deposits 106.13 93.36

Deferred Tax Liability

On Fixed Assets - -

On others - -

- -

On Fixed Assets (2.70) 35.93

On expenses allowed under Income Tax on payment basis 14.17 22.73

11.47 58.66

Net deferred tax asset / (liability)

Advance income tax (net of provision for tax) 198.66 200.39

Capital Advances 53.41 39.95

R
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12 Inventories

7,050.44 11,017.58

Inventory comprise of

Raw Materials

2,455.18 3,584.33
Work in progress

736.72 2,251.54

Finished Goods

1,760.58 2,268.67
Traded goods

1,373.75 1,856.56
13 Trade receivables

5,741.00 8,853.77
14 Cash and cash equivalents

615.63 105.85
15 Other Bank Balances

322.11 298.51

Raw Materials 2,455.17 3,584.33

Stock in Transit 654.53 1,007.50

Work-in-progress 736.72 2,251.54

Finished goods 1,760.59 2,268.67

Stock of traded goods 1,373.75 1,856.56

Stores and spares 69.68 48.98

Lead in all forms 2,026.85 2,520.75

Others 428.33 1,063.58

Lead Ingots 728.16 2,251.54

Others 8.56 -

Lead Ingots 722.17 918.67

Lead Alloys 807.03 906.52

Others 231.38 443.48

Zinc Ingots 1,362.98 1,845.79

Others 10.77 10.77

Considered good - Unsecured 5,741.00 8,853.77

Cash in hand 2.23 1.83

Balances with banks

In current accounts 607.96 103.58

In EEFC account 5.44 0.44

In fixed deposits

Margin money with banks (maturing within 12 months from the reporting date) * 285.54 285.64

In earmarked accounts Unpaid dividend accounts 36.57 12.87

* Lien marked with banks and are restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability.

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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16 Other current financial assets

17 Other current assets

1,571.56 3,909.39

18 Capital

2,015.00 1,240.00

Issued Share Capital

581.24 557.60

Subscribed and fully paid up share capital

581.24 557.60

Notes:
(a) Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed

Balance at the end of the year 58,12,390 55,75,993

(b) Shareholders holding more than 5% of the total share capital

(c) Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

Forward contract receivable - 17.83

Other advances

GST / Rebate Receivables 252.82 2,131.99

Interest accrued on Deposits 0.49 13.49

Prepaid expenses 5.82 8.41

Balances with government authorities 56.13 107.04

Advances to Employees 9.03 7.68

Others - Suppliers Advance (including for expenses) 1,247.27 1,640.78

Authorised Share Capital

2,01,50,000(1,24,00,000) Equity shares of 10 each 2,015.00 1,240.00

58,12,390(55,75,993) Equity shares of 10 each 581.24 557.60

58,12,390(55,75,993) Equity shares of 10 each 581.24 557.60

Balance as at the beginning of the year 55,75,993 55,75,993

Add: Issued on account of business 2,36,397 -
combination

Ashish Bansal 8,47,582 14.58                  6,36,620 11.42

Anil Kumar Bansal 6,23,461 10.73                  6,23,461 11.18

Manju Bansal 5,12,627 8.82 5,12,627 9.19

R.P.Bansal 5,30,945 9.13 5,02,737 9.02

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 10 each. The equity shares of the company
having par value of 10/- rank pari-passu in all respects including voting rights and entitlement to dividend. The
interim dividend of 3.00 per share ( 4.00 per share during the year 2018-19) paid by the Company, is subject to
the ratification of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

- 17.83

R

R

R

R
R

R R

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Name of the share holder
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

No of shares No of shares% %
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19 Other Equity

14,463.74 12,482.43

a) General reserve

1,195.92 1,035.92

b) Securities Premium

1,092.52 277.87

c) Retained Earnings

Opening balance 11,168.64 8,325.68

Closing balance 12,175.30 11,168.64

d) Other comprehensive income

Opening balance

Closing balance - -

20 Long Term Borrowings

684.30 351.94

General reserve 1,195.92 1,035.92

Securities Premium 1,092.52 277.87

Retained Earnings 12,175.30 11,168.64

Other comprehensive income - -

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,035.92 705.92

Additions during the year 160.00 330.00

Balance at the end of the year

Balance at the beginning and end of the year 277.87 277.87

Additions on account of business combination 814.65 -

Balance at the end of the year

Net profit for the period 1,634.56 3,372.83

Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income 9.59 4.12

Transfers to General Reserve (160.00) (330.00)

Excess/(Short) provision for taxes reversed (7.55) (2.33)

Dividend paid (including tax on dividends) (469.94) (201.66)

Closing Retained earnings includes (127.17) lakhs on account of business combination (refer Note 4)

- -

Additions during the year 9.59 4.12

Deductions/Adjustments during the year (9.59) (4.12)

Secured *

From Banks 690.71 581.58

From Others - 9.46

Unsecured Loans

From Related Parties ** 500.00 -

Less: Current maturities of Long Term Debt (refer Note 25) (506.41) (239.10)

* Refer Note 48 for repayment terms and security details
** Represents loan from Directors

R

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

21 Provisions (Non-current)

56.29 62.41

22 Other non-current Liabilities

10.38 15.94

23 Current liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings

Secured

Unsecured

4,443.61 13,629.54

Notes:

24 Trade payables

471.41 406.93

25 Other current financial liabilities

817.55 251.98
26 Provisions (Current)

77.34 8.14

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity 56.29 62.41

Deferred Government Grants 10.38 15.94

Loans repayable on Demand

From banks

Rupee Loans 3,512.78 13,573.87

From Others 0.66 2.85

Loans from directors 874.35 -

Inter Corporate Deposits 55.82 52.82

(a) Working Capital loans are secured by hypothecation of present and future stock of raw materials, stock-in-process,

finished goods, stores and spares, book debts, materials in transit, etc., and guaranteed by promoter directors of the

company. The above working capital facilities availed from banks are additionally secured by a charge / mortgage

on all fixed assets of the company. The loans carry interest in the range of 7% to 9%

(b) Inter-corporate and other deposits carry interest in the range of 11% payable annually, repayable as per the terms of

repayment agreed

Dues to Micro and Small enterprises * 8.07 16.14

Dues to Creditors other than Micro and Small enterprises 463.34 390.79

* Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis
of information collected by the management represents the principal amount payable to these enterprises. There are no
interest due and outstanding as at the reporting date. Please refer Note 44.

Forward Contract Payable 274.57 -

Current maturities of long-term debt 506.41 239.10

Unpaid/Unclaimed dividends 36.49 12.80

Unclaimed Fractional Shares dividends 0.08 0.08

Provision for Tax (net of advance tax and TDS) 62.38 -

Provision for employee benefits

Compensated absences 14.96 8.14
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As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

27 Other current liabilities

318.14 379.71

Statutory Dues Payable 193.45 31.27

Employee benefits payable 104.26 122.80

Advance and deposits from customers 14.86 220.07

Deferred Government Grants 5.57 5.57

28 Revenue from operations

1,21,987.10 1,04,888.55
Details of Manufactured and Traded Goods

1,18,446.56 1,01,171.00

3,395.44 3,211.41

29 Other income

354.28 398.93
30 Cost of materials consumed

1,07,381.96 90,033.23

Sale of Products

Manufactured Goods 1,18,446.56 1,01,171.00

Traded Goods 3,395.44 3,211.41

Sale of Services

Conversion Charges Received 2.99 341.08

1,21,844.99 1,04,723.49

Other Operating Revenue 142.11 165.06

I. Manufactured Goods:

Metals 1,17,127.46 98,633.07

Metallic Oxides 1,124.52 2,062.20

PVC Additives 4.76 346.03

Others 189.82 129.70

ii. Traded Goods

Metals 3,393.61 3,145.86

Others 1.83 65.55

Interest Income

Interest receipts 14.23 65.04

Profit on fixed assets sold / scrapped / written off - 6.55

Rental Income from operating lease - 37.88

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation (net) 326.42 270.98

Miscellaneous income 13.63 18.48

Opening inventory of raw materials 3,584.33 3,716.44

Add : Opening inventory on account of business combination 139.74 -

Add : Purchases 1,06,387.59 90,090.51

Less : Closing inventory of raw materials (2,455.18) (3,584.33)

Add: (Gain)/Deficit in Hedging operations of price of raw materials (274.52) (189.39)
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31. Purchases of Stock in Trade

2,797.33 4,460.03

32 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and finished goods

Opening Balance

6,579.50 5,327.23

Closing Balance

3,871.05 6,376.77

2,708.45 (1,049.54)

33 Employee benefits expens

1,959.71 1,504.83

34 Finance Cost

994.56 1,122.34

35 Depreciation and amortisation expense

786.67 519.26

36 Other expenses

Metals 2,889.77 4,522.41

Add: (Gain)/Deficit in Hedging operations of price of traded goods (95.55) (111.73)

Others 3.11 49.35

Work-in-progress 2,251.54 1,528.64

Finished goods 2,268.67 3,481.10

Stock in trade 1,856.56 317.49

Add : Opening inventory on account of business combination 202.73 -

Work-in-progress 736.72 2,251.54

Finished goods 1,760.58 2,268.67

Stock in trade 1,373.75 1,856.56

Net (increase)/decrease in inventories

Salaries and wages 1,745.46 1,358.36

Contribution to provident and other funds 139.46 80.78

Staff welfare expenses 74.79 65.69

Interest on Bank Borrowings 836.96 974.87

Interest on Others 157.60 147.47

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 756.94 509.56

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 29.73 3.83

Depreciation on Investment Property - 5.87

Power and Fuel 1,138.02 1,349.31
Consumption of Packing Materials 29.53 35.00
Conversion Charges Paid - 23.50
Environmental Control Expenses 185.09 291.15

As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)
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As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Repairs and Maintenance

Buildings 55.07 62.22

Plant and Machinery 149.80 236.68

Vehicles 12.10 14.03

Others 16.81 14.32

Factory expenses 122.53 90.48

Freight and Forwarding 832.19 637.49

Insurance 59.21 45.88

Laboratory Expenses 15.67 12.00

Legal and professional charges 47.42 55.02

Merger Expenses 32.08 -

Payments to Auditors [refer note 36 (a)] 17.16 14.84

Communication expenses 22.46 26.80

Printing and Stationery 7.21 9.68

Rates and Taxes 56.84 74.66

Rent 14.54 33.81

Advertisement and business promotion 18.22 9.65

Sales Commission 190.12 83.99

Travelling and Conveyance 50.94 171.25

MTM loss on forward contract 292.39 59.82

Loss on fixed assets sold / scrapped / written off 36.63 -

Bank charges 61.95 38.69

Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility [refer note 36 (b)] 94.20 69.77

Miscellaneous Expenses 31.74 49.48

Statutory Audit fees 10.00 10.00

Taxation fee 1.00 1.00

GST Audit 1.75 1.00

Limited Review Audit 0.75 1.00

Other Certifications* 3.66 1.84

* Excludes merger certification fee of 1.00 Lakh (previous year - Nil)

(i) Gross amount required to be spent on Corporate Social Responsibility

during the year 93.56 69.64

(ii) Amount spent during the year on

(i)   Construction and/ or acquisition of any asset - -

(ii)  Other purposes [other than (i) above)] 94.20 69.77

(iii) Amount unspent during the year Nil Nil

3,589.92 3,509.52

36(a) Payment to auditors

17.16 14.84

36(b) Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

94.20 69.77

R R
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As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

37 Income tax expense

(a) Income tax expense

Current tax

Total current tax expense 481.64 1,822.47

Deferred tax

Total deferred tax expense/(benefit) 6.58 (7.49)

Income tax expense 488.22 1,814.98

(b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

accounting profit as follows:

Income tax expense 481.64 1,822.47

(c) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 3.22 2.21

(d) Movement of deferred tax expense for the year ended March 31,2020

Total* 21.27 (6.58) (3.22) 11.47

Current tax on profits for the year 481.64 1,822.47

Deferred tax adjustments 6.58 (7.49)

Profit before tax from continuing operations 2,122.78 5,187.81

Income tax expense calculated at 25.168% (2018-19: 34.944%) 534.26 1,812.83

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit (52.62) 9.64

* The Impact is due to the difference in tax rate adopted for the current year
deferred tax and previous year deferred tax

Deferred tax

Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 3.22 2.21

Property, plant, and equipment and Intangible Assets (1.50) (1.20) - (2.70)

Expenses allowable on payment

basis under the Income Tax Act 21.85 (4.46) (3.22) 14.17

Other temporary differences 0.92 (0.92) - -

21.27 (6.58) (3.22) 11.47

*Includes . 37.39 Lakhs of liability on account of business combination [refer Note 4]

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in
relation to: Other

comprehensive
income

Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
balance in profit or in balance

loss

R
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As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

e) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31,2019

Total 53.38 7.49 (2.21) 58.66

38 Earnings per share For the year ended For the year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

39 Earnings in foreign currency

68,068.32 54,930.56

40 Expenditure in foreign currency

195.91 71.43
41 CIF value of imports

89,405.52 81,311.13

42 Value of imported and indigenous Raw material Consumed during the financial year and the percentage of
each to the total consumption

Raw Materials

1,07,381.96 100.00 90,033.23 100.00

Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in Opening Recognised Recognised Closing
relation to: balance in profit or in Other balance

loss comprehensive
income

Property, plant, and equipment and Intangible Assets 29.73 6.20 - 35.93

Expenses allowable on payment basis under the
Income Tax Act 22.73 1.29 (2.21) 21.81

Other temporary differences 0.92 - - 0.92

53.38 7.49 (2.21) 58.66

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company 1,634.56 3,372.83

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 55,83,097 55,75,992

Basic earnings per share (Rs) 29.28 60.49

Diluted earnings per share (Rs) 29.28 60.49

Export Turnover 68,068.32 54,930.56

Membership Fee 6.94 4.27

Travelling 4.98 4.82

Commission 171.83 55.98

Repairs and Maintenance 12.16 6.36

Raw Materials 89,299.17 81,032.65

Capital Goods 106.35 278.48

Imported 87,281.53 81.00 79,107.99 88.00

Others 20,100.43 19.00 10,925.24 12.00

In Lakhs Percentage (%) In Lakhs Percentage (%)R R

Year ended March 31,2020 Year ended March 31,2019
Particulars
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43 Remittance in foreign currency on account of dividend

Particulars

44 Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 are as under

45 Commitments and contingent liability

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Contingent Liability

Commitments

46 Operating Segments

Information relating to geographical areas

(a) Revenue from external customers

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Total 1,21,987.10 1,04,888.55

(b) Non current assets

Amount Remitted as Dividend 16.36 9.65

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year 8.07 16.14

(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the
appointed date during the year - 10.69

(c) Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act - -

(d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for all the
delayed payments, as per the agreed terms - 0.06

(e) Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid - 0.06

*This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company.

Performance/ Finance  Guarantees

Liability in respect of Letter of Credit Opened -                               -

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for 154.29 339.46

The operations of the Company falls under a single primary segment i.e., “Metal” in accordance with Ind AS 108
‘Operating Segments” and hence segment reporting is not applicable

India 53,918.78 49,957.99
Rest of the world 68,068.32 54,930.56

The manufacturing facilities of the Company is situated in India and no non-current assets are held outside
India

Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Particulars Year ended Year ended

March 31,2020 March 31,2019
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(c) Information about major customers

47 Operating lease arrangements

Particulars Year ended
March 31,2020

As Lessor

As Lessee

Number of external customers each contributing
more than 10% of total revenue 3 3

Total revenue from the above customers 90,262.26 71,577.75

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for

certain surplus facilities. The leases are cancellable at the option

of either party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual

agreement of the parties.

Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss - 37.88

The Company has entered into operating lease arrangements for

certain facilities. The leases are cancellable at the option of either

party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual agreement

of the parties.

Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 14.54 33.81

Particulars Year ended Year ended

Year ended
March 31,2019

48 Terms and conditions of long term borrowings

March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Pari Passu First Charge on the
entire Fixed Assets of Zinc Oxide
Plant, Sriperumbudur

Pari Passu First Charge on the
Immovables / Other Fixed Assets
of Smelter Division I & II

Exclusive Charge on the Fixed
Assets located at No 78C,
Industrial Park, Gajulamandyam,
the erstwhile Meloy Metals
Private Limited

Exclusive Charge on the Fixed
Assets located at No 78C,
Industrial Park, Gajulamandyam,
the erstwhile Meloy Metals
Private Limited

Financial Institution
Loan

Outstanding Tenor
Repayment

Commences from
Security Guarantee

Personal
Guarantee
of Promoter

Directors

Axis Bank

HDFC Bank

50.00
(150.89)

339.89
(430.69)

100.82
(Nil)

200.00
(Nil)

36 months

27 months

November, 2017

September, 2019

35 months

42 months

April, 2019

April, 2019

The above loans carry interest in the range of 9% to 11%
(Figures in brackets represent previous year numbers)
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49 Financial Instruments

Capital management

Gearing Ratio: March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Categories of Financial Instruments March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Financial assets

a. Measured at amortised cost

b. Mandatorily measured at FVTPL

Financial liabilities

a. Measured at amortised cost

b. Mandatorily measured at FVTPL

Financial risk management objectives

Market risk

The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to continue as going
concern,while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plans and long-term
product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are met through equity, long-term
borrowings and other short-term borrowings.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders.

Debt 1,190.71 591.04
Less: Cash and bank balances 937.74 404.36

Net debt 252.97 186.68

Total equity 15,044.99 13,040.03

Gearing ratio (%) 1.68% 1.43%

Other non-current financial assets 106.13 93.36

Trade receivables 5,741.00 8,853.77

Cash and cash equivalents 615.63 105.85

Bank balances other than above 322.11 298.51

Investments 9.56 14.40

Derivative instruments - 17.83

Borrowings (non-current) 684.30 351.94

Borrowings (current) 4,443.61 13,629.54

Trade payables 471.41 406.93

Other financial liabilities 542.98 251.98

Derivative instruments 274.57 -

The treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international financial
markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations through internal risk reports which
analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial instruments and forward
contracts to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company's policies approved
by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial derivatives,
and the investment of excess liquidity. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

Market risk is the risk of any loss in future earnings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from
a change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of
changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and
interest rate exposure through its finance division and uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts,
wherever required, to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative instruments is subject to limits
and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.
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The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange
rate fluctuations arise. The Company actively manages its currency rate exposures through a centralised treasury
division and uses natural hedging principles to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The use of derivative
instruments, if any, is subject to limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management.

It is the policy of the company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover (a) repayments of specific
foreign currency borrowings; (b) the risk associated with anticipated sales and purchase transactions, taking into
account the natural hedging on imports & exports and cost of currency to be recovered from the customers as per
Sale Contract.

The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Foreign currency risk management

Forward foreign exchange contracts

Disclosure of hedged and unhedged foreign currency exposure

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Interest rate risk management

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies
may impact the Company's revenues from its operations. Any weakening of the functional currency may impact the
Company's cost of imports and cost of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the
Company's capital expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by
aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate exposure of a currency and a simultaneous parallel foreign exchange
rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management's assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in
foreign currency rates.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because
the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflect the exposure during the year.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because it borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest rates. The
risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align with interest rate views and defined risk appetite, ensuring the
most cost-effective hedging strategies are applied. Further, in appropriate cases, the Company also effects changes
in the borrowing arrangements to convert floating interest rates to fixed interest rates.

As on March 31,2020

Currency

Liabilities Assets

Gross
exposure

Exposure
hedged using

derivatives

Exposure
hedged using

derivatives

Net liability
exposure on the

currency

Gross
exposure

Net asset
exposure on the

currency

Net overall
exposure on the

currency -
net assets /

(net liabilities)

USD

In INR

-

-

-

-

-

-

20.08

1,519.59

20.08

1,519.59

20.08

1,519.59

As on March 31,2020

Currency

Liabilities Assets

Gross
exposure

Exposure
hedged using

derivatives

Exposure
hedged using

derivatives

Net liability
exposure on the

currency

Gross
exposure

Net asset
exposure on the

currency

Net overall
exposure on the

currency -
net assets /

(net liabilities)

USD

In INR

-

-

-

-

-

-

63.03

4,063.34

63.03

4,063.34

63.03

4,063.34

POCL
®

99



Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Credit risk management

Exposure to credit risk

(a) Trade Receivables

(b) Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equivalents and Bank Deposits

Offsetting related disclosures

Liquidity risk management

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives
and non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 25 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The 25 basis point interest rate changes will impact the profitability by 29.74 Lakhs for the year (Previous INR
33.82 Lakhs)

Credit risk arises when a customer or counterparty does not meet its obligations under a customer contract or
financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities
primarily trade receivables and from its financing/ investing activities, including deposits with banks, mutual fund
investments and foreign exchange transactions. The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with
any counterparty.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the
total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term deposits with banks, trade receivables, margin money
and other financial assets excluding equity investments.

The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and, based on the evaluation, credit limit of each
customer is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the credit risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank,
guarantee/letter of credit or security deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks to a single customer. As per simplified approach,
the Company makes provision of expected credit losses on trade receivables using a provision matrix to mitigate the
risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporting date wherever outstanding is for
longer period and involves higher risk.

Credit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banks/financial institutions is generally low as the said
deposits have been made with the banks/financial institutions, who have been assigned high credit rating by
international and domestic rating agencies.

Credit Risk on Derivative Instruments is generally low as the Company enters into the Derivative Contracts with the
reputed Banks.

Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved banks/ financial institutions/ counterparty. Investments
primarily include bank deposits, investment in units of quoted mutual funds issued by high investment grade funds
etc. These bank deposits, mutual funds and counterparties have low credit risk. The Company has standard
operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus liquidity, which allows investment in bank
deposits, debt securities and mutual fund schemes of debt and arbitrage categories and restricts the exposure in
equity markets.

Offsetting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the consortium agreement is available only to the bank
in the event of a default. Company does not have the right to offset in case of the counter party's bankruptcy,
therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company cannot meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The
Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which carry minimal mark to market risks.
The Company also constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to
maintaining financial flexibility.
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The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities

with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial

liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

Liquidity tables

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2019

Trade payables
Borrowings (including interest accrued
thereon upto the reporting date)

Trade payables
Borrowings (including interest accrued
thereon upto the reporting date)

Due in 1st year

Due in 1st year

Carrying amount

Carrying amount

Due in 2nd to
5th year

Due in 2nd to
5th year

Due after 5th
year

Due after 5th
year

471.41

506.41

977.82

406.93

239.10

646.03

-

684.30

684.30

-

351.94

351.94

-

-

-

-

-

-

471.41

1,190.71

1,662.12

406.93

591.04

977.97

Fair value of financial assets and financial

liabilities that are not measured at fair value

(but fair value disclosures are required):

March 31,2020         March 31,2019

Nil                            Nil

50 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

Holding company

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Key management personnel (KMP)

Relative of Key Management personnel

The Company does not have any holding company

The Company does not have any subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal Chairman

Mr. Ashish Bansal Managing Director

Mr. R.P.Bansal Whole Time Director

Mr. K Kumaravel GM-Finance & Company Secretary

Mrs. Usha Sankar Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Pawan Kumar Bansal Son of Mr. R.P. Bansal

Mr. Sri Sabarish S Son of Ms. Usha Sankar

Ms. K Mahalakshmi Wife of Mr. K.Kumaravel
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b) Transactions during the year

1 Meloy Metals Private Limited

Sales - 886.37

Purchases - 2,027.29

Conversion charges Received -                           10.04

Conversion charges paid -                           23.50

Interest Received -                           41.59

Security Deposit Given (Net) -                         148.14

2 M/s. Daman Metallic Oxides

Sales -                         182.24

3 Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal

Interest Paid 20.28 20.11

Remuneration paid 114.09 111.68

Loans taken 140.54 103.50

Loans repaid 85.56 689.00

4 Mr. Ashish Bansal

Interest Paid 86.27 4.20

Remuneration paid 231.31 231.06

Loans taken 26.46 19.73

Loans repaid 143.30 457.14

5 Mr. R.P.Bansal

Interest Paid 34.41 63.11

Remuneration paid 115.82 113.83

Loans taken 144.89 76.50

Loans repaid 139.17 765.78

7 Mr.K Kumaravel

Remuneration paid 27.76 27.66

8 Ms.Usha Sankar

Remuneration paid 19.39 19.31

9 Mr. Pawan Kumar Bansal

Remuneration paid 9.45 7.50

10 Mr. Sri Sabarish S

Remuneration paid 6.98 5.70

11 Ms. K Mahalakshmi

Remuneration paid 3.60 3.60

S.No. Nature of transactions
Year ended

March 31,2020
Year ended

March 31,2019

c) Balances at the end of the year

Particulars As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Loans

As at

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal 245.24 -
Mr. Ashish Bansal 780.42 -
Mr. R.P.Bansal 348.69 -
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51 Retirement benefit plans

Defined contribution plans

Defined benefit plans

(a) Gratuity

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars March 31,2020 March31,2019

In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of

Gratuity fund, a defined contribution plan, in which both employees and the Company make monthly contributions at

a specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary. The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to

the Gratuity fund as well as Employee State Insurance Fund

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of 139.46 Lakhs (previous year 80.78 Lakhs) represents

contribution paid to these plans by the Company at rates specified in the rules of the plan.

Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. In terms of the same, gratuity is computed by multiplying

last drawn salary (basic salary including dearness Allowance if any) by completed years of continuous service with

part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15/26. The Act provides for a vesting period of 5 years for

withdrawal and retirement and a monetary ceiling on gratuity payable to an employee on separation, as may be

prescribed under the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, from time to time. However, in cases where an enterprise has

more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk and salary

risk.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount

rate determined by reference to the market yields on government bonds

denominated in Indian Rupees. If the actual return on plan asset is below this rate, it

will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability. However, this will

be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s debt investments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the

best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their

employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase

the plan’s liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the

future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan

participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Discount Rate 6.53% 7.62%

Rate of increase in compensation level 6.40% 7.25%

Expected Average Remaining Working Lives of Employees (years) 29.84 30.58

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,

promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

R R
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Current service cost 22.05 17.13

Net interest expense 9.59 8.17

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (4.76) (3.11)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability comprising:
Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised during the period (12.81) (6.23)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Present value of defined benefit obligation 141.47 124.89

Fair value of plan assets (85.18) (62.49)

Net liability/ (asset) arising from defined benefit obligation

Funded - -

Unfunded 56.29 62.40

The above provisions are reflected under ‘Provision for employee
benefits- gratuity’ (long-term provisions) [Refer note 21].

Opening defined benefit obligation 124.89 105.92

Current service cos 21.68 17.14

Interest cost 9.59 8.17

Actuarial (gains)/losses (12.81) (6.34)

Benefits paid (1.88) -

Closing defined benefit obligation

Opening fair value of plan assets 62.49 40.88

Return on plan assets 4.95 3.23

Contributions 19.62 18.76

Benefits paid (1.88) (0.38)

Actuarial gains/(loss) - -

Closing fair value of plan assets

Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of March 31,2020 March 31,2019

these defined benefit plans are as follows: Lakhs Lakhs

Amount recognised under Employee Benefits

Expense in the Statement of profit and Loss:

26.88 22.19

Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) for the Year

(12.81) (6.23)

14.07 15.96

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Company’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans Lakhs Lakhs

is as follows:

56.29 62.40

56.29 62.40

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation

in the current year were as follows:

141.47 124.89

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets in the current year were as follows:

85.18 62.49

R R

R R
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In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the present value of the defined

benefit obligation which has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,

which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance

sheet.

The expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined at each balance sheet date using

projected unit credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid / availed as a result of the unused

entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date is 14.96 Lakhs (previous year 8.14 Lakhs). Expense

recognised during the year is 8.96 Lakhs (previous year NIL).

Sensitivity analysis

(b) Compensated absences

R R

R R

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements As per our report of even date attached

Chartered Accountants

(FRN No.010283S)

For M/s. L. Mukundan and Associates

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

Place : Chennai
Date : June 29,2020

For and on behalf of the board

Anil Kumar Bansal

Chairman

DIN: 00232223

Usha Sankar

Chief Financial Officer

Ashish Bansal

Managing Director

DIN: 01543967

K.Kumaravel

GM Finance & Company Secretary
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NOTICE TO THE 25 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
th

Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Fifth Annual General Meeting of the Members of

will be held on Monday, September 28, 2020, through Video Conferencing/other Audio-Visual

Means (“OVAM”) to transact the following business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March

31, 2020 together with the reports of Board of Directors’and Auditors’ thereon,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution, as an

the Audited Financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and Board’s Report and

Auditor’s Report thereon be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. Ashish Bansal (DIN: 01543967), who retires by rotation and being eligible,

offers himself for reappointment

pursuant to section 152 of the Companies Act 2013, Mr. Ashish Bansal (DIN: 01543967), who

retires by rotation and being eligible for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director of the Company

and he shall continue to be the Whole-Time Director of the Company.”

3.

a

pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the Articles of

Association of the Company, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, consent of the members of the

Company be and is hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Ashish Bansal as Managing Director of the Company for a period

of 3 years with effect from 01 April 2021 at such remuneration mentioned below with an authority of the Board to

provide an annual increment not exceeding 30% of the existing remuneration-

: 1,20,00,000 (Rupees One Crore Twenty Lakhs only) per annum.

Such as House Rent Allowance, Medical Allowance, Special Allowance,

Provident Fund, Conveyance, Medical Reimbursement for self and family, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession,

Gratuity, Utilities expenses, House maintenance, Books, Periodicals and Annual subscription for residence, use

of company maintained car for business and personal use and communication expenses as may be provided by

the Company and as agreed upon by the Board of Directors of the Company and Mr. Ashish Bansal provided that

the total value of allowances and perquisites payable in a year shall not exceed the amount of annual salary.

: On actual basis

the above remuneration shall be subject to modification, as may be deemed fit by

the Board from time to time and subject to the limits and stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Schedule V thereto, and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to time.

where in during the tenure of the Managing Director, the Company has no profits

or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay the remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and

allowances subject to the limits and conditions specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as may

be amended from time to time.

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such

acts, deeds and things, to enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as

the Board may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-

delegate, in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise considered by the Board to be in the best interest

of the Company, as it may deem fit.”

PONDY OXIDES AND

CHEMICALS LIMITED

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT

“RESOLVED THAT

SPECIAL BUSINESSES:

Re- appointment of Mr. Ashish Bansal (DIN: 01543967) as Managing Director and fixing his remuneration.

“RESOLVED THAT

I. Basic Salary

II. Perquisites and allowances:

III. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for official purposes

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as

st

st

Ordinary Resolution:

Special Resolution:

R



4.

a

pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the Articles of

Association of the Company, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consent of the members of the

Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal (DIN: 00232223) as Whole-Time Director

of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 01 April 2021 at such remuneration mentioned below with an

authority of the Board to provide an annual increment not exceeding 30% of the existing remuneration-

: 60,00,000 (Rupees Sixty lakhs only) per annum.

Such as House Rent Allowance, Medical Allowance, Special Allowance,

Provident Fund, Conveyance, Medical Reimbursement for self and family, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession,

Gratuity, Utilities expenses, House maintenance, Books, Periodicals and Annual subscription for residence, use

of company maintained car for business and personal use and communication expenses as may be provided by

the Company and as agreed upon by the Board of Directors of the Company and Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal provided

that the total value of allowances and perquisites payable in a year shall not exceed the amount of annual salary.

: On actual basis

the above remuneration shall be subject to modification, as may be deemed fit by

the Board from time to time and subject to the limits and stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Schedule V thereto, and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to time.

where in during the tenure of the Whole time Director, the Company has no profits

or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay the remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and

allowances subject to the limits and conditions specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as may

be amended from time to time.

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such

acts, deeds and things, to enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as

the Board may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-

delegate, in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise considered by the Board to be in the best interest

of the Company, as it may deem fit.”

5.

a

pursuant to the provisions of Section 196, 197, 203 read with Schedule V and other applicable

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rules made thereunder (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the relevant provisions of the Articles of

Association of the Company, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consent of the members of the

Company be and is hereby accorded to re-appoint Mr. R.P. Bansal (DIN:00232708) aged about 73 years as Whole-

Time Director of the Company for a period of 3 years with effect from 01 April 2021 at such remuneration mentioned

below with an authority of the Board to provide an annual increment not exceeding 30% of the existing remuneration-

: 60,00,000 (Rupees Sixty lakhs only) per annum.

Such as House Rent Allowance, Medical Allowance, Special Allowance,

Provident Fund, Conveyance, Medical Reimbursement for self and family, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession,

Gratuity, Utilities expenses, House maintenance, Books, Periodicals and Annual subscription for residence, use

of company maintained car for business and personal use and communication expenses as may be provided by

the Company and as agreed upon by the Board of Directors of the Company and Mr. R P Bansal provided that the

total value of allowances and perquisites payable in a year shall not exceed the amount of annual salary.

Re-appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal (DIN: 00232223) as Whole-Time Director and fixing his

remuneration.

“RESOLVED THAT

I. Basic Salary

II. Perquisites and allowances:

III. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for official purposes

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

Re-appointment of Mr. R.P. Bansal (DIN: 00232708) as Whole-Time Director and fixing his remuneration.

“RESOLVED THAT

I. Basic Salary

II. Perquisites and allowances:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as

Special Resolution:

Special Resolution:

st

st

R

R
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III. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for official purposes

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

6. Appointment of Dr. M Ramasubramani, as Independent Director of the Company

“RESOLVED THAT

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2019-20

RESOLVED THAT

PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMCIALS LIMITED

K. Kumaravel

GM Finance & Co. Secretary

NOTES:

: On actual basis

the above remuneration shall be subject to modification, as may be deemed fit by

the Board from time to time and subject to the limits and stipulations prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013 read

with Schedule V thereto, and/or any guidelines prescribed by the Government from time to time.

where in during the tenure of the Whole time Director, the Company has no profits

or its profits are inadequate, the Company shall pay the remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and

allowances subject to the limits and conditions specified under Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, as may

be amended from time to time.

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all such

acts, deeds and things, to enter into such agreement(s), deed(s) of amendment(s) or any such document(s), as

the Board may, in its absolute discretion, consider necessary, expedient or desirable including power to sub-

delegate, in order to give effect to this resolution or as otherwise considered by the Board to be in the best interest

of the Company, as it may deem fit.”

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule IV and other applicable

provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules,

2014 and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force) Dr. M Ramasubramani having DIN: 07999117,

in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from

a member proposing his candidature for the office of Director, be and is hereby appointed as an Independent Director

of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation, and to hold office for first term of 5 (five) consecutive years

commencing from 13 March 2020 up to 12 March 2025.”

the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and

take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7.

“ pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies

Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended from time to time, the consent of

the members be and hereby accorded to ratify the remuneration of 30,000/- (Rupees Thirty Thousand only) in

addition to applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses, fixed by the Board of Directors, to M/s. Vivekanandan Unni &

Associates, Cost Accountants, Chennai (having Firm Registration Number 00085), appointed by the Board of

Directors as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20.”

By Order of the Board

For

Place : Chennai

Date : 13 August 2020

1. In view of the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic and the consequent restrictions and requirements like social
distancing, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide Circulars No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, No.17/2020
dated April 13, 2020 and No.20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)
vide its Circular No.SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, have allowed companies to hold their
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) during
the calendar year 2020. In terms of the said circulars read with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an :

Ordinary Resolution:

Ordinary Resolution

th th

th

R
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the 25th AGM of the Company will be held through VC/ OAVM (e-AGM) and the shareholders can attend and
participate in the e-AGM through VC/OAVM only. The deemed venue of the e-AGM will be the Registered office of the
company.

The presence of shareholders through VC/ OAVM will be reckoned for the purpose of quorum under section 103 of the
Act.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the “meeting” or “AGM”) is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of himself / herself and the proxy so appointed need not be a member of the
Company. However, as this AGM is being held through VC/ OAVM, physical attendance of shareholders is dispensed
with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the shareholders is not applicable for this AGM. Hence the
proxy form and attendance slip are not being annexed to this Notice and the resultant requirement for submission of
proxy forms does not arise.

Corporate member(s) intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting are requested to send
to the Company a duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

3. An explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating to the
Special Business to be transacted at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

4. Additional information pursuant to Regulation 26(4) and 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS- 2) in respect of the directors
seeking appointment / re-appointment at the meeting is furnished and forms part of the Notice.

5. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, the
22 September 2020 to Monday the 28 September 2020 (both days inclusive).

6. In line with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM, along with the
Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/ Depositories (“DP”). Members holding shares in physical / demat form who have not
registered their email address with the Company can get the same registered as per the procedure given below.

In case of shares held in demat mode, with their respective DPs.

In case of shares held in physical mode, by accessing the link https://investors.cameoindia.com or by email to the
RTAat investor@cameoindia.com with details of Folio number and attaching a self-attested copy of PAN card.

After due verification, the Company / RTA will send login credentials for attending the AGM and voting to the
registered email address.

Members may also note that the notice

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The Members will be
able to view the proceedings on the Central Depository Services Limited’s (‘CDSL’) e-Voting website at
www.evoting.csdl.com. The facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least
1,000 Members on a first come first served basis as per the MCACirculars. The detailed instructions for joining the
Meeting through VC/OAVM form part of the Notes to this Notice.

7. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the
Act, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act and
all other documents referred in the notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode and at the Registered
office of the Company during normal business hours (9:30 am to 5:00 pm) on all working days except Saturdays, up to
and including the date of the AGM of the Company.

8. Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/mobile numbers, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of attorney, bank
details such as name of the bank and branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFS Code, etc., to their DPs in
case the shares are held by them in electronic form and to Company’s Registrar in case the shares are held by them in
physical form.

nd th

l

l

l

of the 25 Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report 2019-20 shall be
placed on the Company’s website www.pocl.co.in and on the website of the Stock Exchange i.e. BSE Ltd –

www.bseindia.com. The AGM Notice is also available on the website of CDSL (agency for providing the Remote
e-Voting facility and e-Voting System during the AGM) www.evotingindia.com.

th
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Members holding shares in physical form are requested

to advise any change in their address immediately to Cameo Corporate Services Limited.

to update their Bank details already registered with the Company / Cameo Corporate Services Limited or register

their bank details by submitting the duly completed National Electronic Clearing Services (NECS) mandate form.

9. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to

register their e-mail address with RTA/Depositories for receiving all communication(s) including Annual Report,

Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company electronically.

10. SEBI vide circular dated April 20, 2018 has mandated the Company to collect copy of PAN and Bank account details

from Members holding shares in physical form. Accordingly, individual letters were sent to those shareholders whose

PAN and Bank account details are not available with the Company. Such shareholders are requested to provide the

information at the earliest to the Company/ RTA.

11. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in the same order of

names are requested to send the share certificates to Cameo Corporate Services Limited, for consolidation into a

single folio.

12. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to

eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management. SEBI has decided that

securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form from 01 April 2019. Members can

contact the Company or Cameo Corporate Services Limited for assistance in this regard.

13. Members seeking any information with regard to the financial statements are requested to write to the Company at

kk@pocl.co.in at least 7 days before the Annual General Meeting so as to enable the management to keep the

information ready at the Annual General Meeting.

14. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be entitled

to vote.

15.

a) Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the year 2012-13 and years thereafter are requested

to approach the Company for revalidation/issue of duplicate warrants quoting their Ledger Folio/DP-Client ID.

b) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with applicable rules, the Company

has transferred the unpaid or unclaimed dividends for the financial year 2011-12 on due dates, to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund (the IEPF) established by the Central Government.

c) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has uploaded the details of

unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with the Company as on March 31, 2020 on the website of the Company

(www.pocl.co.in).

d) Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules, unpaid dividend due

for transfer to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) are as follows:

Dividend for the year ended Date of Declaration Proposed date of Transfer*

March 31, 2013 August 27, 2013 October 3, 2020

March 31, 2014 September 12, 2014 October 18, 2021

March 31, 2015 September 16, 2015 October 22, 2022

March 31, 2016 September 17, 2016 October 23, 2023

March 31, 2017 September 27, 2017 October 3, 2024

March 31, 2018 September 22, 2018 October 28, 2025

March 31, 2019 September 18, 2019 October 24, 2026

March 31, 2020 March 13, 2020 April 19, 2027

l

l

st

Investor Education Protection Fund:

*Indicative dates, actual dates may vary.
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e) Pursuant to the notification of Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and

benefit of the shareholders. Members are requested to verify the

status in the Company’s website (www.pocl.co.in).

16. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed to this Notice.

17.  Information and other instructions relating to e-voting are as under:

1. The procedure for participation in the AGM through VC/OAVM is as below;

Shareholders will be able to attend the e-AGM by using their e-Voting login credentials and are advised to follow the

procedure given below:

(I) Launch internet browser by typing the URLhttps://www.evotingindia.com

(ii) Enter the login credentials (i.e. user ID and password for e-Voti

General Instructions

Protection Authority Fund (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, the Company is required to

transfer the shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more.

The Company has issued notice to the concerned shareholders intimating them of the impending transfer of

shares and simultaneously published a notice in newspapers. The Company has also uploaded the details of the

same on the website of the Company for the

ng).

(iii) In case the login credentials are not available or forgotten, retrieve the same by following the procedure given in

the e-Voting instructions.

(iv) After login, click on ‘Live Streaming’ link

(v) Enable the camera in your computer/ other devices in the ‘settings’menu.

Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. Further

shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during

the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile

Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore

recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

The facility to join the meeting will open 30 minutes before the scheduled time of the AGM and will be kept open

throughout the proceedings of the AGM.

If you would like to express your views/raise queries during the meeting (or if you have queries but you do not wish

to speak during the meeting), then you may send a request in advance at least

mentioning your name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number by email to kk@pocl.co.in,

specifying whether you would like to speak at the AGM. Only those shareholders who have registered themselves

as a speaker may be allowed to express their views/ask questions during the meeting. The Chairman will have

right to allocate time to a speaker and/or restrict the number of speakers depending on the availability of time for

the AGM. During the AGM, the Chairman may also, at his discretion, make available a chat window for a limited

period, to enable you to express views/ask questions.

2. Shareholders can cast their votes through Remote e-Voting or at the AGM through e-voting

The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”) as the Agency to

provide VC/ OAVM facility to its shareholders for participation in the AGM.

I) The remote e-voting facility will be available during the following period:

- From 9.00 a.m. (IST) on September 25, 2020

- Up to 5.00 p.m. (IST) on September 27, 2020

ii) Once the vote is cast by a Member, it cannot be subsequently changed or voted again. The remote e-voting will

not be allowed beyond the aforesaid date and time and the e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL upon

expiry of aforesaid period.

iii) The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to

cast their vote again.

seven days prior to the meeting

Commencement of remote e-voting:

End of remote e-voting:
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iv) Shareholders who could not vote through Remote e-Voting may avail the e-Voting system provided at the e-AGM

by CDSL. The remote e-Voting module on the day of the AGM shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 15 minutes

after the conclusion of the Meeting.

3. The Voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up share capital of the Company

as on September 21, 2021. Members holding shares either in physical form or dematerialized form, as on September 21,

2020 i.e. cut-off date, may cast their vote electronically. Any person who is not a Member as on the cut- off date should

treat this Notice for information purposes only.

4. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the Company after dispatch of the notice

and holding shares as on September 21, 2020, may obtain the login Id and password by sending request at

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

5. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 13 August 2020 have appointed M/s. KSM

Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a

fair and transparent manner and they have communicated their willingness to be appointed and will be available for

the purpose.

6. Members will be provided with the facility for voting through electronic voting system during the VC proceedings at the

AGM and Members participating at the AGM, who have not already cast their vote by remote e-Voting, will be eligible

to exercise their right to vote at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, upon

announcement by the Chairperson. Members who have cast their vote on resolution(s) by remote e-Voting prior to the

AGM will also be eligible to participate at the AGM through VC/OAVM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote on such

resolution(s) again.

7. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at AGM, count the votes cast at the AGM through e-

voting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses who are

not in the employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer will submit a consolidated Scrutinizer’s Report of the total

votes cast in the favour of or against, if any. The Chairman, or any other person authorized by the Chairman, shall

declare the result of the voting forthwith.

8. The results along with the Scrutinizer’s Report will be placed on the website of the Company www.pocl.co.in and on

the website of CDSL immediately after the results are declared by the Chairman or any other person authorized by the

Chairman and the same shall be communicated to BSE Limited.

1. The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

2. Click on .

3. Now Enter your User ID

For CDSL 16 digits beneficiary ID

For NSDL 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID

Members holding shares in Physical Form Folio Number registered with the Company

4. Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.

5. If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier voting of
any company, then your existing password is to be used.

6. If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

th

Steps for e-Voting

Shareholders
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7. After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

8. Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, members

holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter

their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders

for voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for

e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and

take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

9. For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in

this Notice.

10. Click on the EVSN of PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED.

11. On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/NO” for

voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option

NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

12. Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

13. After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If

you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify your

vote.

14. Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

15. You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

16. If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password, then enter the User ID and the image verification code

and click on Forgot Password & entering the details as prompted by the system.

17. Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based mobiles. The m-

Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and Windows phone users can download the app

from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively on or after 30th June 2016. Please follow the

instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department

(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)

Members who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository

Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8

digits of the sequence number in the PAN field.

In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number

of 0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL

letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number 1 then enter

RA00000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Bank Details Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please enter

the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in

instruction (iv).

l

l
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18. Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log on to
www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and password. The
Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

The list of accounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they
would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of the
Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs”)
and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact them at their helpline number 1800225533.

19. Any grievance or clarifications with regard to voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. K. Kumaravel,
Company Secretary at KRM Centre, 4 Floor No. 2, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Chennai 600 031, Phone: 044-
42965454, Email ID : kk@pocl.co.in.

l

l

l

l

l
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), the following explanatory statement sets out all the

material facts relating to the business mentioned under Item Nos. 3 to 7 of the accompanying notice:

The tenure of Mr. Ashish Bansal, Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal and Mr. R.P. Bansal expires on March 31, 2021. Taking into

consideration the valuable services rendered by them and based on the recommendation of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors in their meeting held on August 13, 2020 approved their re-appointment

for a further period of three years with effect from April 1, 2021 with a revised remuneration, subject to the approval of the

shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to provisions of Sections 196 and 197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013, approval of the

shareholders by way of Special resolution is being sought for the re-appointment of Mr. Ashish Bansal as Managing

Director and Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal as Whole-time Director and payment of remuneration to them.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 196(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 approval of the shareholders by way of

Special resolution is sought for re- appointment of Mr. R.P. Bansal as a Whole-Time Director. Section 196(3) of the

Companies Act, 2013 inter alia provides that no Company shall appoint or continue employment of a person who has

attained the age of 70 years as a Managing Director, Whole-Time Director or Manager unless it is approved by the

members by passing a special resolution.

Keeping in view that Mr. R.P. Bansal has rich and varied experience in the Industry and has been involved in the operations

of the Company over a long period of time, it would be in the interest of the Company to continue his employment as a

Whole-Time Director. Further, in the opinion of the Board, he is also physically fit to carry out the duties of a Whole-Time

Director. Hence Shareholders are requested to appoint him as a Whole-Time Director and confirm his terms of

appointment and remuneration by passing a Special Resolution.

Asummary of the material terms and conditions relating to the appointment of above directors is as follows:

Mr. Ashish Bansal Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal Mr. R.P.Bansal

For a period of three years from April 1, 2021

1,20,00,000 p.a 60,00,000 p.a 60,00,000 p.a

House Rent Allowance, Medical Allowance, Special Allowance, Provident Fund,

Conveyance, Medical Reimbursement for self and family, Bonus, Leave Travel Concession,

Gratuity, Utilities expenses, House maintenance, Books, Periodicals and Annual

subscription for residence, use of company maintained car for business and personal use

and communication expenses as may be provided by the Company as agreed upon by the

Board of Directors of the Company and the respective director subject however that the total

value of allowances and perquisites payable in a year shall not exceed the amount of annual

salary.

On actual basis

Not exceeding 30% Not exceeding 30% Not exceeding 30%

ITEM NO. 3 TO 5

Director

Tenure

Basic Salary

Reimbursement of
Official Expenses

Annual Increment

s s s
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The Disclosures required to be given under Regulation 46(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards on General Meeting (SS-2) is provided at Annexure Aof this Notice.

In the years where the Company has no profits or the profits are inadequate, the remuneration
to the managerial personnel will be within the limits set out in Part II - Section II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013
as amended from time to time. The Board of Directors of the Company may also be authorised to determine and modify
from time to time the remuneration payable to the said directors in accordance with the provisions of Sections 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V thereof and stipulations contained in and any other applicable provision of the
Companies Act, 2013. In view of above, the Company is seeking approval of the Shareholders by way of special
resolution.

Information as required under the Part II - Section II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of each
appointee is produced below:

The Company is engaged in the manufacture of Lead Metal, Alloys and Oxides.

The Company has been in business for the past 25 years and focusing on the manufacturing of metals, alloys and
Zinc oxides.

3. Financial performance based on given indicators

in Lakhs

Sales (Net) 121,987.10 104,888.55 93,975.19

Profit Before Tax 2,122.78 5,187.81 4,397.31

Profit After Tax 1,634.56 3,372.83 2,917.93

Shareholders’Funds 15,044.98 13,040.03 9,867.07

4. Foreign investments or collaborations, if any: NIL

Mr. Ashish Bansal aged about 39 years is a part of the Board of the Company since 2009. In the 20 Annual
General Meeting he was appointed as Managing Director with effect from 01 June, 2015. He was re-appointed
as Managing Director with effect from 01 April 2018 for a period of 3 years.

The total remuneration drawn by Mr. Ashish Bansal during the financial year 2019-20 was 231.31 Lakhs.

During the previous year 2018-19 he received the award for Excellence in Business Performance from
Economic Times in the category of 750-2000 crores turnover category.

Mr. Ashish Bansal graduated in Management studies from University of Wales, United Kingdom. He is in charge
of overall functioning of various departments. Mr. Ashish Bansal devotes his time and attention to the business
of the Company and carry out such duties as may be entrusted to him by the Board from time to time and
separately communicated to him and exercise such powers as may be assigned to him, subject to
superintendence, control and directions of the Board.

The remuneration of Mr.Ashish Bansal is as set out in the resolution.

Minimum Remuneration:

I. General Information

1. Nature of Industry

2. Date or expected date of commencement of commercial production

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18

II (A) Information about Mr. Ashish Bansal, Managing Director

1. Background details

2. Past remuneration

3. Recognition or awards

4. Job profile and his suitability

5. Remuneration proposed

s

s
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6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position
and person

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with managerial
personnel, if any

II (B) Information about Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, Chairman and Whole-Time Director:

1. Background details

2. Past remuneration

3. Recognition or awards

4. Job profile and his suitability

5. Remuneration proposed

6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position
and person

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with the managerial
personnel, if any

II(c) Information about Mr. R.P.Bansal, Whole Time Director

1. Background details

2. Past remuneration

The remuneration is as per Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and is
comparable with the remuneration in similar sized industries in same/similar segment of business for this
position and profile.

Mr. Ashish Bansal has advanced unsecured loan of 780.42 lakhs to the Company. He holds 8,47,582 equity
shares in the Company.

Mr. Ashish Bansal is the son of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, Whole-Time Director and Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, aged 66 years is the Promoter-Director of the Company and holding the position of
Managing Director from the date of incorporation of the company in 1995. With effect from 01 June 2015 he was
appointed as Whole-Time Director and Chairman of the Company.

The total remuneration drawn by Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal during the financial year 2019-20 was 114.09 Lakhs.

Taking into account the contribution made by Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal in PVC Stabilizer Industry he was the Vice
President of All India Plastics Manufacturers’ Association (AIPMA) South Zone, Member – IPI Chennai, and
Member – CIPET Chennai.

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal is a Science graduate, specialized in production and R&D areas of Metals, Alloys and
Oxides. He is the Chairman of the Company and he oversees the activities of the Board and giving directions to
the Managing Director and other Directors on the policies of the Company and taken steps to start new projects in
the company.

The remuneration of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal is as set out in the resolution.

The remuneration is as per Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and is
comparable with the remuneration in similar sized industries in same/similar segment of business for this
position and profile.

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal has advanced unsecured loan of 245.24 lakhs to the Company. He holds 6,23,461
equity shares in the Company.

Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal is related to Mr. Ashish Bansal, Managing Director and Mr. R.P. Bansal, Whole Time
Director of the Company.

Mr.R.P. Bansal is the whole time Director of the Company. He was reappointed as Whole Time Director of the
Company for a period of 3 years with effect from April 01, 2018 at the 22 Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on September 27, 2017.

The total remuneration drawn by Mr. R.P.Bansal during the financial year 2019-20 was 115.82 Lakhs.
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Mr. R.P.Bansal started his career in 1965 in chemicals trading, by this virtue he gained a widespread knowledge
in various chemicals. He is well versed in the technical aspects of the Manufacturing process and he has rich
experience in the marketing as well.

The remuneration of Mr. R.P.Bansal is as set out in the resolution.

The remuneration is as per Section 197 and 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V and is
comparable with the remuneration in similar sized industries in same/similar segment of business for this
position and profile.

Mr. R.P. Bansal has advanced unsecured loan of 348.69 lakhs to the Company. He holds 5,30,945 equity
shares in the Company.

Mr. R.P.Bansal is the brother of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, Chairman and Whole-time Director of the Company.

Managing growth and price stability are the major challenges of macroeconomic policy making. Your company
has taken steps to mitigate the challenge and improved the turnover and profitability during the past 3 years.
Though the profitability of the Company is adequate to pay the remuneration, in many of the years, taking into
account the eventuality of inadequate profit approval of the members is obtained for payment of minimum
remuneration, if required.

To overcome the above problems, the Company started locking the price for import of raw materials on average
LME basis every month as the sale realization also based on the average LME price of the previous month.
Further, the Company also introduced value added products to maximize the profitability. Hedging Mechanism
is in place to safeguard against volatility risk.

In view of the steps taken by the Company, turnover has increased in the year 2019-20 compared to the previous
years. Further, the company is also aiming to increase the profitability in coming years as per the initiatives taken
by the Management.

As required, the information is provided under Corporate Governance Section of the Annual Report.

The Explanatory Statement together with the accompanying Notice may be treated as an abstract of the terms of
appointment of Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, Chairman and Whole-time Director, Mr. Ashish Bansal, Managing Director
and Mr. R.P.Bansal, Whole Time Director and payment of remuneration to them and the Memorandum of interest
under Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Your Directors recommends the resolutions set out in Item Nos. 3 to 5 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Except Mr. Ashish Bansal, Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal and Mr. R.P. Bansal, none of the Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolutions
set out at item nos. 3 to 5.

To appoint Dr. M Ramasubramani as Independent Director of the Company

Considering the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee, the Board of Directors had appointed
Dr. M Ramasubramani as an Additional Director of the company with effect from 13 March 2020 to hold office upto the
date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company. Pursuant to sec 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act and
Regulation 25 of the listing regulations, it is proposed to appoint Dr. M Ramasubramani as Independent Director for a term
of 5 consecutive years from 13 March 2020 to 12 March 2025.

3. Job profile and his suitability

4. Remuneration proposed

5 Comparative remuneration profile with respect to industry, size of the company, profile of the position
and person

6. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the company, or relationship with managerial
personnel, if any

III. OTHER INFORMATION

1. Reasons for inadequate profits

2. Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement

3. Expected increase in productivity and Profits in measurable terms

IV. DISCLOSURES.

ITEM NO. 6
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In the opinion of the Board, Dr. M Ramasubramani fulfills the conditions for appointment as Independent Director as
specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations. The Details as required by the Secretarial Standard
on the General Meetings and SEBI Listing Regulations are provided in the Annexure to this Notice.

Other than Dr. M Ramasubramani, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are,
in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this resolution. Your Directors recommend the resolution
set out in Item No. 6 of the Notice for approval by the Members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Ratification of remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of M/s.
Vivekanandan Unni & Associates as the Cost Auditor (having Firm Registration Number 00085) to conduct the audit of the
cost records of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors, has to be ratified by the members of the Company.

The remuneration payable to the cost auditor is 30,000 (Rupees Thirty Thousand Only) excluding taxes and
reimbursement of incidental expenses incurred by the Auditor for carrying out the cost audit

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 7 of the Notice for
ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 7 of the Notice.

By Order of the Board

For

Place : Chennai

Date : 13 August 2020

ITEM NO. 7

PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

K. KUMARAVEL

GM FINANCE & CO. SECRETARY
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Annexure to the Notice

BRIEF PARTICULARS OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT

[Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and

Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2)]

DR M RAMASUBRAMANINAME OF DIRECTOR ASHISH BANSAL

DIN 01543967 07999117

Qualification

Date of Birth/ Age 15.07.1981/39 03.07.1958/62

Date of first appointment on 30.07.2009 13.03.2020

the Board of Directors

Last drawn remuneration 231.31 Lakhs N.A.

Brief resume of the Director

Graduate in Management studies from M.A(Political Science) from Madurai

University of Wales, United Kingdom. Kamaraj University, B.L. from Madurai

Law College, M.L. (Constitution and

International Law) from Madras

University, MHR -Master of Human

Rights from Pondicherry University and

Ph.D. in Cyber Crime, Inter Disciplinary,

University of Madras.

Mr. Ashish Bansal is a part of the Board Dr. M Ramasubramani IPS, is a well

of the Company since 2009.  In the known Police Officer and also a high

20 Annual General Meeting he was level Sports Administrator.

appointed as Managing Director with

effect from 01 June, 2015. He was

re-appointed as Managing Director with

effect from 01 April 2018 for a period

of 3 years.

Relationship between Mr. Ashish Bansal is the son of N.A.

Directors inter-se Mr. Anil Kumar Bansal, Whole-Time

Director and Chairman of the Company.

Expertise in specific functional Overall Management of the Company Specialisation in the field of Education &

areas with specialization in Raw Material & Technology mainly into Virtual

Procurement and Sale of finished Reality & Augmented Reality

goods. Technology concepts.

Terms and Conditions of As stated in the Notice As stated in the Notice

Appointment along with the

Remuneration

Number of Board Meetings 7 Nil
attended during the year

Directorship in other Nil Currently he is a Director in Vreon

Companies Tech India Private Limited from

21-11-2017.

Membership/Chairmanship of Nil Nil

Committee across other public

Companies, Committees, if any.
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Number of Shares held as on 8,47,582 Nil

March 31, 2020.
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CONTRIBUTED MEDICAL VENTILATOR UNDER CSR TO

SRI SWAMI VIVEKANANDA MEDICAL MISSION

CSR ACTIVITIES RELATED EVENTS

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW SCHOOL BUILDING UNDER CSR IN

JAIGOPAL GARODIA VIVEKANANDA VIDYALAYA TRUST
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS  [ In lakhs]R

PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

Net Sales

Profit Before Tax and Exceptional
items [PBTE]

Profit Before Tax [PBT]

Profit After Tax [PAT]

Total Comprehensive Income

Net Cash Accrual

Dividend [incl. Div. Tax]

Fixed Assets: Net [Incl. WIP]

Deferred Tax Assets [Net]

Net Non Current Assets

Net Current Assets

Net Assets

PBTE to Sales (%)

PAT to Sales (%)

Return on Assets (%)

Return on Net worth (%)

Return on Capital Employed (%)

Debt : Equity (times)

Fixed Assets Turnover (times)

Earning per share

Dividend (%)

Dividend per share

Book value per share

1

2

3

121,987.10

2,122.78

2,122.78

1,634.56

1,644.15

2,421.23

201.05

5,278.57

11.47

1,266.55

13,616.30

20,172.89

1.74

1.34

13.52

11.64

15.45

0.05

23.11

29.28

30

3.00

258.84

4.95

3.22

24.88

29.45

23.35

0.06

31.30

60.49

40

4.00

233.86

4.68

3.11

27.25

34.30

22.91

0.08

28.80

52.33

30

3.00

176.96

5.52

3.73

34.89

48.81

28.57

0.21

27.35

50.75

30

3.00

128.14

3.43

2.17

24.21

28.16

19.56

0.41

17.57

18.16

20

2.00

71.95

3,350.94

58.66

455.74

23,724.17

27,589.51

3,263.09

53.38

580.58

20,199.33

24,096.38

2,774.71

35.24

316.49

14,648.58

17,775.02

2,652.30

-

307.86

9,097.56

12,057.72

104,888.55

5,187.81

5,187.81

3,372.83

3,376.96

3,892.09

201.66

93,975.19

4,397.31

4,397.31

2,917.93

2,929.84

3,348.08

201.66

75,894.09

4,185.75

4,448.82

2,829.54

2,833.82

3,217.08

201.33

46,596.67

1,600.40

1,600.40

1,012.73

-

1,401.32

139.09

SOURCES AND APPLICATION OF FUNDS

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Equity Share Capital

Reserves & Surplus

Profit and Loss Account

Net Worth

Loan Funds

Deferred Tax Liability [Net]

Funds Employed

581.24

2,288.44

12,175.30

15,044.98

5,127.91

-

20,172.89

557.60

1,313.79

11,168.64

13,040.03

13,981.48

-

27,021.51

557.60

983.79

8,325.68

9,867.07

14,229.31

-

24,096.38

557.60

713.79

5,873.58

7,144.97

10,630.05

-

17,775.02

557.60

443.79

3,010.54

4,011.93

7,980.08

65.71

12,057.72

APPLICATION OF FUNDS

RATIOS

OPERATING RESULTS

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16

Note:
1. Return on Assets is PBIT divided by Average Net Operating Assets

Net operating assets exclude CWIP, Cash and Non-Trade Investments
2. Return on Net worth is computed based on average net worth
3. Return on Capital Employed is PBIT divided by Funds employed
Figures from  2016-17 are in compliance with IndAS
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SILVER JUBILEE CELEBRATIONS
OF

PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED ON 21-03-2020



PONDY OXIDES AND CHEMICALS LIMITED

An ISO 9001 : 2015 Certified Company
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